THIS IS A PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT IN COMPLIANCE WITH ONLY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INVITATION OR OFFER TO ACQUIRE, PURCHASE OR SUBSCRIBE TO SECURITIES NOR IS IT A PROSPECTUS ANNOUNCEMENT.

cREeENPANEL GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

The Company (Corporate Identification Number U20100A52017PLC018272) was incorporated on December 13, 2017 as a public limited company with the
name “Greenpanel Industries Limited”. The registered office of the Company is situated at Makum Road, P.O. Tinsukia, Assam -786125.

The main object under the Memorandum of Association of the Company is “To carry on business as manufacturers, traders, exporters, importers, dealers, wholesalers, retailers, service providers, commission agents, of medium density fibreboard (MDF), high density fibreboard (HDF), wooden
flooring, plywood, particle board, doors, laminafed wooden flooring, laminates of all sizes and descriptions, veneers, pre-laminated board, decorative laminates, decorative laminated sheets, high pressure laminates, post forming laminates, decorative veneers, ready to install doors, high-end
doors, High-end Veneered Engineering Flooring and Pre-laminated Particle Board of all kinds and descriptions and other paper based, wood based and plastic based products of all kinds and descriptions and industrial laminated sheets, compact laminates of every descriptions, post formed
panels, whether laminated or nof, restroom cubicles, lockers and every type of partition systems and to act decorators and manufacturers and deal in housing furniture and fittings, interior decorators, commercial and industrial furniture and fittings and implements and tools of all descriptions and
provide consultancy in total interior and exterior decorafion and furniture solution. " There has been no change in the object clause of the Company till date.

Capital Structure nfth_& En:_l-:rn_p.ap:.! .

Presently, Mr. Bhandari, besides being on the Board of Indian Instituie of Management, Indore, also hold

PRE-SCHEME POST SCHEME Directorship in several companies and their statutory committess
~ Particulars | Amount fin INR) | Pariculars | Amount (in INR) 4. Mr. Mahesh Kumar Jiwrajka belonged to the Indian Forest Service, Maharashira Cadra (March 1, 1977 fo
Authorized Capital Authorized Canital March 31, 2009 and fook voluntary retirerment with effect from March 31, 2009, Amongst various positions, he
] p1 000 3 - = =i also was the Inspector General of Forests & Head North-East Cell, Ministry of Ervironment & Forests,
fﬁ'ﬂguﬁg Equ;.y e LA 0 ﬁuuua?gnﬁiq”g} r 0,00, 000 Government of India. In his many years of experience, besides handling various important issues dealing with
d et shares Ol each various aspects of enviranment, he also held the following positions:
. - J D sotal - A0 » Member Secretary, High Power Committee for the North Eastern Region, Constiuted by the
I:Sil:ITII Subscribed and ES-L:S' Subscribed and Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (1996 to 2016)
aid-Up aid-Up . L i e -
10,00,000 equity shares | 10,00,000 12,26 27,395 equity 12,26,27,395 ngg.r Special Investigation Tearn, Conatituted by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (February 13, 2000
of INR 1.00 each shares of INR 1.00 each ¥
Total 10.00,000 Total 12 26.27,395 ' rlu1emtlar Secretary, Central Empowered Committes, Constifuted by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India
Shareholdi ng pattern of the Promoter/Promoter Group Ly 3, e 2015)
. ol - T ) : £ b SR
2 Mol Nawms of Proriote Number of Equity Percentage of paid Member, CAMPA, Constitutad by the Hon'ble Supreme Court (May 2005 to 2016),
Shares in Company | up capital in Company = Presenily, Mr. Jiwrajka is the propriefor of SEDA Advisory Services, specializing in financial, legal and
[ PROMOTER emironment consultancy
1 Mir Shiv Prakash Mittal £ L 5. Ms. Sushmita Singha, a post graduate in English from the Patna University, has done a Diploma in Urban Town
2 Mr Shobhan Mtal 798 (00 .60 Flanning from the Huma'_'- fSerrFemg_-."l r.1ar1.agerre_nt Inst'r_tu‘.e. Mew Delhi, as well 85 8 certification course in
FROMOTER GROUP Enhancement of Managerial Capability from the Indian Institute of Management, Lucknow.
T 3 Shiv Prakash Mittal and Shobh En'”ﬁ{ﬁ:'ﬁ Eha"f T Besidas holding directorship in sevaral companies and their committess, Ms. Sushmita Singha has also been
of Trade C. u:lml:linn;s parinership Iirrn. gk 11.702 380 g 54 actively irvohvad in saveral social organizations and Government inifiafives like:
4 Mr Rajesh Mittal 3,079,900 7 51 * Former Secretary General of the PHD Chamber of Commerce & Industry
5 Mr Sanidhya Mittal 90,000 0.a7 * Former Member of the LIN Task Force-Millennsum Development Commitiee for Waler and Sanitation
B Ms. Santosh Mittal 1,165,900 0.85 + Former Member ofthe Task Force on Tenancy Rights, Ministry of Urban Development, Gevemment of India
b Ms. Karuna Mittal 620,000 (155 * Former Member of the National Touwrism Advisory Counca, Ministry of Tourism, Govemnment of India
. Chitwan M ;. ;s
g Ms. Chitwan Mittal »  Formmer Member of Siate Supenisony Board, Depariment of Health, Government of Uttar Pradesh
g Master Aditya Mittal : ’ - :
»  Received awards from the Islamic Republic of Alghanistan as weall as SrilLanka
10 | Master Dev Mittal P g
1 M. Saurabh Mittal : * Sheis alsoon the Advisory Board of BMGE & Associates LLP.
12 M. Usha Dhurka z Presantly, Ms. Sushmita Singha is associated with NGO's like My Anchor Foundation, Sapna NGO, and INTACH
13 M. Kiran Loyalka efc. invanous capacily.
14 Ms. Neera Devi Bhartia - 6., Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf, a Chartered Accountant by qualification has been practicing as a Tax Consultant for over
= e 33 years. He had been managing Income Tax related matters for over 250 companies spread across Kolkata
; 33 He had I Tax related f 250 d Kaolka
13 Mr. Sharad Jaipuria Bangalore and Mumbai, Besides, he has also been appointed as an Additional Director in Loyaie IT-Solutions
16 Mz Anjali Jzipuria Privale Liméted
17 Mr. Dilip Modi Rationale of the Scheme:
. :z g Er:_i:'\;p_a-.ra_ls__._.lmpgr-g . - {i}  Enhanced strategc flexibility bo bustd a wiable platiorm solely focusing on each of the businesses
5, Fusum Jalan -
_I [I (i) Enable dedicated management focus, resources and skil 28t allocation to each business, which will i temn
accelerate growth and unlock significant value sharehoéders of the Company.
el Ms. Rasika Kajaria - lerate growth and unlock signif lue for the sharehalders ofthe Company
£] bl il iil)  Provide enhanced stratagic flexibility in the operation of each of the aforamantioned businesses.
22 Fajesh Mittal & Sons, HUF : - il Exnanding the patential disnt cus el ioreach busi it
L e e ST ! . R ] e
23 Prita Holdings Private Limited 12.042.800 382 iv) panding the potential client | customer market for each business vertica
94 5. M. Management Private Limitad 14 B26 965 95 74 (v} Accesstovaroussources of funds and investments for the ragid growth of both the businesses.
75 Vanashres Properties Private Limited 1 448 (155 118 (vi} The nature of technology, risk, competition and capital intensily involved in each of the undertakings of the
e Sty EREPT ? Company Is distinct from each other. Consequently, each undertaking of the Company is capable of addressing
EE PIEan .fras.L l_’“'urE il Sl L indepandant business opportunities, deploying differant technologies and attracting different sets of investors,
| R Homeon Limited strategic partners, lendess and other stakeholders. Henoe, as part of an overall business reorganisation plan, itis
28 Showan Investment Privale Limdated considered desirable and expedient io undertake the demerger.
24 Brijphumi Merchants Privata Limsad Change in accounting policies in the last three years and their effect on profits and reserves (Financial
30 Educational Inmovations Private Limited - statements should not be later than six menths prior to the date of listing):
31 Birijshumi Tradevin Private Limited = There has been no change in accowling policies of the Company in the ast three years
32 | Mastermind Shoppers Private Limited a5 : Details of its other group companies including their capital structure and financial statements:
33 Dhalka Phywood Industries Private Limited The following table enumerates the group companies of the Company, brief description of the business and nature and
34 Bluesky Projects Private Lirnited extent ofinterest of the Promaoters:
i FHCS Paml i Folndslion : No. | Mame of the Company Country of Nature of business | Interest of
36 Trade Combines Ple Limited, Singapore - Incarparation activity Promoters
a7 Greenlam Indusiries Limited = 1. | Greenply Indusiries Limited India Manufacturing of Plywood 0.60%
38 Himalaya Granites Limited - and allied products
39 Greenply Leasing and Finance Private Limited 2 Greenlam Industries Limited India Manufacturing of 2.10%
; R . Laminalas
40 Prime Proparfies Private Limited ]
#1 | 5.M.SafsinvestPrivate Limitad T Groanply Indusirice Linised
Topten largest shareholders of the Company: Capqtals.tlucture _
5. Mo.| Mame of Shareholder Mumber of Equity | Percentage of total Partlcu_lam — Amount (in INR)
Sharesheld | peld up capitl Aulhelzad Capha
1 5. M. Management Pi. Ltd. 3_15:2:5.955 7579 16.00,00,000 aquity sharas of INR 1.00 aach 16,00 0, 000
2 Prime Holdings Pyt. Lid. 1,20 42 800 882 Total 16,00,00,000
3 Jwalamukhi Investment Holdings 117,87, 720 9 61 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
- T bl il sl 12.26,27,395 equily shares of INR 1.00 sah 122627 3%
on behalf of Trade Combines, parinership firm 147,02 380 5 54 Total 12,26,27,395
3] HOFC Small E.'-'Ip Fund 1.02 87 455 B4l ﬂgrpumm Information
i 581 Consumption Opportunities Fund 53,680,262 437 Greenply Industries Limited (*Graenply”} was originally incorporated as "Mittal Laminates Private Limited” on
7 IDFC Sterling Vakee Fund 45 70,000 3.73 MNovember 28, 1930 under the Companies Act. 1956. Greanply was converted into a public fimited company and
e | anea the name was changed o Mittal Larminates Limited pursuant fo.a fresh cerlificaie of incorporation dated
B Tata India Consumer Fund 36,83,900 317 :
- : Movember 1, 1994, The name was changed {o “Greenply Indusiries Limited” pursuant to a fresh cerlificate of
g Vsl ChisORer Fond 116 3B ATS 23 incorporation dated January 17, 1996 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Shillong. Its corporata identificaton
10 Rajesh Mittal 30,79,800 2.51 number is L20211AS1990PLCO03484, its registered office is situated at Makum Read, Tinsukia, Assam -
Details of the Pramoters: T ' 786 125, Azsam, India. Greenply is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Plywood and allied products
Mame, Designation and Brief biography of the promoters Interest of the Promaters
_Address of the Promoters I —— Asan March 31, 2019, Shobhan Mital held 0.60% of the equity shares in Greenply
Mame: Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittal Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittal, holds a bachelor's degree in science from the Financial Information
Designation; Execulive Chairman | - University of Calcutta. He is one of the founders of Greenply Indusiries The following information has been derved from the consolidated financial statements of Greenpdy for the last
Address: Flat Mo 2NW Limifed. He was also associated with Kilply Industries Limited for 21 1hreeflnan:lgl - ) s o
5 Queens Park, Kolkata-700 019 {twenty-cne) vears. He has aver thirty years of experience in the fields of EoE A e
DIN; 00237242 production and marketing in plywood, laminates, MDF and allied products., e TN W AN
Date of Birth: April 7,1549; Particulars As of As of As of
Mame: Mr. Shobhan hittal Mr. Shobhan Mittal holds & bachelor degres in business administration Ilar;:cll11 31 M&r':;:] 3’;. “Engf;;
Designation; Managing Direcior and was Joint Managing Director & CED of Greenply Industnes Ltd, He
and CEQ possesses over 10 (len) years of expenience in business administration Equity Capital (face vakee Rs. 1)- per share) 1,226.27 1.226.27 1.226.27
Address: 46, Lakashore View and markeling strategy, He was instrumeanial in selting-up of the MOF Other Equity 32 296.12 86 .524.27 76.030.88
Singapore-038401 units of the Company at Paninagar, Uttarakhand as wall as at Chittoos, Ravanua from onarations and othar income 141 547 81 173 93.73 1 78 56691
DIN: 00347517 Andhra Pradesh. After successfully streamlining the Paninagar unit. he e — z il - - : ?.%?‘.‘E '1 II]E?.H 2'544'”
Date of Birth: August 19, 1380 3 presently invoived in the streamlining the operations of the Chittoor umit Foiib{LoEs) afier tax st LA L3
Business Basic eamings per share (in Rs.} . 6.50 | .02 10.29
The Company i a wood based interior infrastruciure company, primarily angaged in the manufacture of an array of Diluted earnings per share (in As.) b.20 9.02 10.29
wood- based panel products whichincludes plywood, MDF boards and allied products. Company was incorporated in [Net asset value per share (in Rs. | - 27,34 71.56 | 63.01 |

the year2017
Company's products and major brands ane as follows:
Manufacturing Unit, Products and brand:

Manufacturing Unit Product Brand

Paninagar, Utiarakhand Plywood and alked products Gresnpanel
Faninagar, Liiarakhand MOF and alied products aresnpanel
_Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh MDF and alied products Greenpane

The Company iz exporting MDF and allied products through its wholly owned subsidiary, Greenpanel Singapore Ple.

Limited, Singapore. The Company has pan-india brand presence, integrated facilities and dealer network, The

products manufactured by the Company are sold across the country under the brand name of “Greenpane’. Company

has & nationwide sales and dealer network in the: form of its own marketing offices, dealers, sub-dealers and retailzrs

The sales and markeling teams periodically review new products, assesses markel trends and develop and build

business ralafions. Comgany has a pan-India markeling netsork. The dealer network comprises of a ssgnificant

number of Plywood dealers’stockists and MDF boards dealers’stockisis, through whom we have access toa network
of Phywood and MOF boards sub-deakers and retailers. WWe believe this pan-India dealer network ensures thai the
products are easiy avaiable in almost any partof India,

We have a centralized ERP system, software system deveboped by SAF, which integrates the management and

allocation of resources for 3l segments of the business operations rangng from human resources 1o quality control

Fer FY ended on March 31, 2019, the tatal revenua was INR 58.731.41 lakhs, We earned a prolit aller Lax of INR

441275 lakhs fior the FY ended on March 21, 2019

Company's management:

Please see below a bref biography of the Direchors:

1. Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittal, holds a bachelor's degres in science from the University of Calcuita. He is one of the
founders of Greenply Indusiries Limited. He was also associated with Kdply Industries Limited for 21 (fwenty-
one) years. He has over thirly years of expenience in the fields of production and marketing in plywood, laminates,
MOF and allied producis.

2. Mr.Shobhan Mittal holds a bachelor degrae in business administration and was Joint Managing Director & CEOQ
of Graengly Industries Ltd. He possesses over 10 (len) years of experience in business adminisiration and
markefing sfrategy. He was instrumental in setting-up of the MDF units of the Company at Paninagar,
Litarakhand as well as at Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh. After successfully streamlining the Pantnagar unit, he is
presenthy invotved in the sireamlining the operations of the Chithoor unit

3. Mr. Salil Kumar Bhandari, an FCA, gradusted from Shri Ram College of Commerce, Delhi University and
Uipdoma in Business Administration from the All India Council for Management Stedies, Chennai, He is the
Founder and Managing Pariner of BGJC & Associales LLP, an awdit and management consulting firm in
Mew Delhi, Earlier he had held several posilions in various organization e.q..

+ Former President of the PHD Chamber of Commerce & Industry
«  Chairperson of Society for Integrated Development of Himalayas (SI0H) and Child Fuend India
* Memberof Task Force - Commission on Centre State Relations, Govi. of India

Managing Commiétiee mamber at ASSOCHAM

+  Memberof Advisory Committes, Depl of Company Affairs, Govt. of India

epaper. jansatta. com

*Financials staled herein are on pre-demerger basis and no effect to scheme of arrangement has been given.

** Financials for the yearendad 31 March 2019 are on posi-demarger basis ie. after giving the effectof schema of -

arrangement.

Greenply has raised INR 5,000 lakhs through Qualified Institutional Placement (CHP) in FY 16-17 atINR 257 per
share by issuing 19.45,525 equity shares of face value of INF 1 each. Current market price is Rs. 155.05 a5 on
Ociober 14, 2019

There are no pending litigabions agaimst Greenply which would have a matenial impact on the Company.

Greenply i not a sick company within the meaning of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,
1995 and no application has been made to the Reqgistrar of Companies for siriking off the name of Greenply.

Thare are common pursuits with the Company to the extent of manufacturing and salling of plywood and
decorative veneers.

List of Directors of Greenply:
1. Rajesh Mittal

Sanidhya Mittal

Susil Kumar Pal

Vinod Kumar Kothar
Anupam Kumar Mukerji
aonali Bhagwati Dalal
Upendra Math Chally

2, Greenlam Industries Limited

e - U S

Capital structure
Farticulars Amount {in INR)
Authorized Capital
3,00,00, 000 equity sharas of INR 5.00 each 15,00,00,000
Tortal 15,00,00,000
| Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
2.41,36,374 equity shares of INR 5.00 each 12.06,81,870
__ Total 12,06,81,870

Corporate Information

Graenlam Industies Limited [*Greentam”) was incorporated as a public Bmited company on August 12, 2013
wnder CA 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Shillong. Hs corporate identity number is
L21016A52013PLCOT11624. Its registerad office is siuated at Malkum Road, Tinswkia, Assam-T86 1.25, Assam,
India

Greenlam is engaged inthe business of manufacturing of Laminates and allied products.
Interest of the Prometers
As onMarch 31, 2019, Shiv Prakash Mittal hedd 2.10% of the equity share capital in Greenkam.

1

Financial Information

The following information has been derived from the consolidated financial statements of Greenlam for the last
threa financial yvears

[Armaaunl it Lakhs)

Particulars As of As of As of
March 31, March 31, March 31,

2013 2018 2017

Equity Capital (face valua Rs. 5/ per shara) 1,206.52 1,206.82 1,206.82
* Other Equity 4163430 | 3440648 2860730
Revenue from operations and other income 12822322 | 14573578  1.11,884.80
Profit!{Loss) after tax T,711.23 646173 4 567.05
Basic eamings per share (in Rs ) 31.95 26,77 20.58
Daluled earmings per share (in Rs.) 31.85 26,77 2058
Ml assel value per shara (in Bs.) 177.450 147 55 123.53

There has been no public issue or rights issue of Greenlam in the preceding three vears

There are no pending litigations agamst Greenlam which would have a matenalimpact on the Company,
Greenlam s not a sick company within the meaning of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,
1995, Further, no application has been made by Greanlam o the Registrar of Companies for striking off its name,

There are common pursuils betwesn Greenlam and the Company to the extent of manufacturing and selling of
dacoralive veneers,

List of Directors:

Shav Prakash Mittal
Saurabh Mittal

Parul Mittal

Vijay Kumar Chopra
sonal Bhagwali Datal
. aandip Das

Related Party Transactions:

| Mame of the Related Party

= o -

Nature of Transaction Amounts (in INR and in lakhs)

|_Greenlam Industries Limited

: Sale of products :
Greenlam industries Limited Purchase of products 137.36

546,14

ireenply Industries Limited | Sake of products 4.416.03

Outstanding litigations and defaulis of the transferne entity, promoters, directors or any of the group
companies:
Lifigations against the Company

| Type of Proceedings NWumber of Cazes Amount invalved, to the extent

| guantifiable [in INR and in lakhs)
rirminal Mone None
Material Civil Proceedings Mone None

;_gﬂti-::nns_l_:u_y_regu,'.an:ry-'s:arumry authorities Hona None

| Direct Tax Mone None

| Indirect Tax 7 1020.07

Litigations by the Company

| Type of Proceedings Number of Cases | Amount involved, to the extent

quantifiable (in INR and in lakhs)
| Criminal 14 M
| Material Ci"."iI_F{-::n:EeEhgs Mone None

Tharae ara nd litigations invalving the Company's Diractoes, Promotars, Subsidiaries.
Further, thare are no Migations invalving the Group Companies which have a malerial impact on the Company

SEBI conducted an investigation into the trading activiies of certain entities in illiquid stock options at BSE for the
pariod April 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015, Basis this investigation it was obsarved that Ms. Santosh Mittal, wife of
Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittal and part of Promoder Group, had indulged im execution of reversal trades in the stock oplions
segment of B3E during the imvestigation pericd. Such frades were observed to be non-genuine in nature and created
false or misleading appsarance of rading in terms of arificial volumes i stock options and therefore alleged fo be
manipulative and decaplive in nature. In view of the same SEBI initiated adjudication proceedings against the nolices
for viofation of the provisions of Regulations 3{a), 3(b), 3(c), 3(d), 4 (1) and 4 {2a) of SEBI [Prohibition of Fraudulent and
Unfair Trade Practices) Regulations, 2003. The Adsudicating Officer of SEBI after having considerad all the facts and
circemstances of the case, the malenal available on record, the factors mentionad in Section 15J of the SEBI Act
imposed a penalty of Fs.5, 00,000 (Rupses Five Lakh caly) on the nofices viz. Ms. Saniosh Mittal under the provisions
of Saction 15HAof the SEBI Act, The same has since been setfled

Particulars of high, low and average prices of the shares of the listed transferor entity during the preceding

three years:
Particulars FY 201617 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 From April 1, 2019 to
| October 14, 2019
| High Price 302.25 3BB.95 32185 171.05
| Low Price 174,65 2hO.ER 114,40 11310
Average Prica 255.61 301,85 191,13 162.48

(Source: www.nseidia. com)

Mote:

1. Average pnce 15 average of dally average pnces for the penod,

£. High and low prices are based an high and low af the daly prices

&ny material development after the date of the balance sheet:

The Composite Scheme of Amangement (the Scheme’) between Greenply and Greenpanel, and their respective
shareholders and creditors has besn approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Guwahati
Bench, vide its onder dated June 28, 2019

The Company has aliolted 12,2627 3895 equity shares of Re, 1 each {Indian Rupee one only) 1o the shareholders of
Greanply whose nameas appear in the register of mermbers of Greenply as on the record date .. 15 July 2018, 1{ana)
aquity share of Re. 1 {Indian Rupees ona anly) each, credited as fully paid up for every 1 (one) aquity share of Re. 1
(indian Rupees one only) each held by themin Greenghy.

Mr. Arun Bumar Saraf was appointed as additional director on the board of direcior of the Company and Mr. Rajesh
Mittal resigned as a director of the Company on August 14, 2015, Pursuant to the resolution passed at the 2° annual
general meeting of the shareholders of our Company held on September 28, 2019, Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf had been
re-designated as an Independent Director of sur Company

Such other information as may be specified by the Board from time to time:

Not Applicable

Financial statements for the previous three years prior to the date of listing:

The Compamy was incorporated on December 13, 2017 hence we have included the financial sistements for
FY 18-19 which also mcludes fingmaial numbers of FY 17-18,

Latest audited financial statements along with notes to accounts and any audit gualifications.

Please see below the inancial stafements for Y 20718-14,

The sformation memorancum will be available on our website (www.greenpansl.com) and on the websites of siock
exchanges,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

TOTHEMEMBERS OF GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

Ve have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
ihersmafier referred fo as the “Holding Company”) and ils subsidiary (the Company and its subsidiary together referred
to a5 “the Group”) which compriss the consolidated balance sheel as al March 31, 2018, the consoldated statement of
Profit and Loss (inchuding other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flows stalerment for the year then ended and motes to the consolidated financial statements,
inchuding a summany of significant accounting policies (herenafter refemad fo as “the congolidated financial statements™).

Ini our opinion and to the best of cwr information and according fo the explanations given fo us and bazed on the
conssderation of reports of the other auditor on separate financial siatements of the subsidiany referred to in the cther
matiers section below, the aforesaid consobdated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view i conformity with Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules made thereunder, a5 amendead
and other acoounting principies qenerally accapted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of te Group as at
March 31, 2013, the consolidated todal comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated
cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in acoordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As)
speciied uwnder section 143{10) of the Act. Dur responsibilities wnder those Slandards are further descrbed in the
Audifor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Stafements section of our report. We are
indepandent of the Groug in accardance with the Cade of Efftves issued by the instifite of Charfered Accouriants of
India {ICAl) togather with tha independance reguirernents that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled ouwr other ethical
responsibilities in acoordance with these requiremenis and the ICA's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obiained, and the audit evidencs obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report referred fo in
‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
congolidated financial stalements,

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other mformatian. The other information comprisss
the information included in the Annual Report but does nof include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expecied to be made avaitable 1o us after the date of this Auditors’ Report.
Our opinion o the consolidatad financial statameants does not cover the other information and we do nol express any
form of aszurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 5 materiafly inconsistent with consolidated financial
statements orgur knowledge obtzined inthe audit or otherwise appears to be matenally missiated,

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 matenal misstatement of this other information,
we are required 1o repart that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holdmg Company's Board of Direclors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act with respect
to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial pedformance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, The respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Growp are responsile for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding tee assels of the Group and for preventing and detecling frawds and oiher
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iregularties; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implamentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controfs, that
werg operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements thal give a true and fair view and are free from
malerial misstatemant, whether due to fraud or errar,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies incuded in the
Group are responsible for assessing the abdity of the Group to condinue a3 a going concem, disclosing, as applicable,
matters relaied fo going concern and using the gomg concern basis of accounting unless management eitherintends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but bo do so.

The respective Board of Diractors of the Companias included in the Group are also responsible for ovarseaing the
financial raporing process of the Group,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whather due 1o frawd or ermor, and to issue an auditors’ report thalincludes ouropinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high lavel of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always datect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud o emor and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggragate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic
decisions of users laken on the basis of thesa consolidated financial slatements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional sceplicism
trroughout the audit. We also;

+ |dentify and assess the risks of matarial misstatement of the consolidated financial statemants, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemeant
resulting from frawd is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgary, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, of the override of intemal contral,

* (btain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the crcumstances. Under section 143(3}1) of the Act, we are also responssble for expressingour

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial confrols system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controis.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies usad and the reasonableness of accaunting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncerainty exists relaled ko events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continwe as & going concem. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attenton in our auditor's report to the related discloswres in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obiained wp 1o the date of our auditor's repori. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
o cease to continue 23 3 going coONcem.

+  Evaluale the overall presentation, struciure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consofidated financial statements represant the underlying Iransactions and events in
amanner thal achieves fair presentation,

Dbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business aciiviies
within the Group and its associate company to express an opinion on ihe consoidated financial statements. Weare
responsibée for the direction, supendsion and performance of the awdit of the standalone! consolidated financial
siatements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independeni
auditors. For the other entifies or business activilies included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the disection. supervision and
parformanca of the awdits camried outby them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govermnance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, amaong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We alzo provide those changed with govemnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requiremenis regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughito bearon cur independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, n respect of Greenpana! Singapore Ple.
Limited subsidiary of the Compamy whose financial statements include fotal assets of INR. 3,174.54 Lakhs as at March
31, 2019, total revenue of INR 7040 .65 Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to INR 20,00 iskhs for the year ended on
that date. These fmancial statements and other information hawe been auwdited by other auditor, whose financial

siatements, other financial information and audstor's report hawe been furnished o us by the management and our

opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 2ofar as it relates to the amount and disclosure included in respect
of the subzidiary and cuwr report i terms of sub-saction 3 of Section 143 of the Act, in 5o far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the athar auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial stalements above and our repart on the Other Legal and Regulatory
Requiremeant belaw, is not modified in respect of above matters with respect bo our reliance on the work done and the
report of the ather auditor,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considerations of the reports of the ather
auditors on separale financial statements of the subsidiary company referred to in the Cther Matlers paragraph above
werepor], to the exlent applicable, thal

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief :

were necessary for the purposes of cur audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial staternents;

b) In our opinian, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statermants have been kept so far as it appaars from our axamination of thosa books:

¢} The consolidated balance sheed, the consolidated statement of profit and kass including (imcluding statement of

other comprehensive income), consolidiated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated stalement of cash

flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of

preparation of the consolidated fnancial statements;

d) In our apinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statemants comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act read with relevant rules made theraunder, as amended and other accounting principles genarally
aceepled in India,

&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Qirectors of the Company and its subsidiary incorporaied in India and the reports of the
stafubory auditor of its subsidiary company none of the directors of the Group incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in berms of Section 164 (2] of theAct;

fI With respact io the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reparting of the Holding Company,
refier o ourseparate raportin *Annexure A" o this repor.

g) With respect fo the ather matiers fo be incleded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, a5 amended

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accoeding to the explanations givan to us, the remunaration paid
by tha Company 1o its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of saction 197 oftha Act.

h) With respect fo the other matiers fo be inchuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rubs 11 of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinton and bo the best of our information and according to the
explanations given bo us and based on the considerations of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statenents as also the other financial mformation of the subssdiary, as nofed in the ‘Other Matters' paragraph:

i. The conzolidated financial statament disclose the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2019 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group -Refer Nota 37 {a) to the consolidated financial statements;

n. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial staterments, as required under the apphicable law or
accountng standards, for material foreseeable ksses, If any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2019,

. Therewere no amounts required to be fransfermed io the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
iCompany during the year ended March 31, 2019

For 8.5, Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo, 000T56N

Sunil Wahal
Parfrnar
Membership No. 87204

Flace; Mew Delhi
Date: July 19, 2019

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
dated July 15, 2019 on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act®) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section.

Dur reporting on the internal financial controls over financial reporting is not applicable in respect of one
audited subsidiary incorporated owtzide India

In conpenchion with our awdil of the consolidated financial staterents of GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the Internal Financial Cantrals over Financial Reporting of

GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hersinafier referrad fo as the “Holding Company™ or the “Company”),
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Derectors of the Company I responsible for establishing and maintaning intemnal financial conlrols based
on “the intermal control over financial reporting criteria establshed by the Company considering the essential
components of infernal controd stated in the Guidance Nole on Audil of Internal Financial Controls aver Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India”. Thess responsibiiies include the design,
implementation and mantenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
ordery and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act").

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility i o exprass an apinion on the intermal financial controls aver financial reporting basad on our audit of

the Company,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of internal Financial Controls Ower Financial
Repaorting (the "Guidance Mote™) and the Standards on Auditing, isswed by 1ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
gaction 143110} of the Aci, fo the extent apphcable io an audit of internal financial confrols, and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountante of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with
ethical requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reazonable assurance about whather adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectivelyin all
mataerial raspacts.

Our audit mvolves performing procedurss bo oblain audil evidence aboul the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systern over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of mtemal financial controls over financial
reporting included oblaming an undarstanding of mtemal financial condrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that & material weakness exists, and testng and evaluating the design and operating effectivensss of internal control

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's pedgement, including the assessment of

the risks of matenal misstatement of the consolbdated financial statements, whether due to frawd or emos

We balieve that the audit evidenca wi have obtained and the audst evidence obtainaed by the ather auditors in terms of 5

thair reports refarmad to in the Cther Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion an the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany's imtemal financial condrol over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliabdity of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial slatements for extemnal
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purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting inchudes those policies and procadures that:

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

al pgﬂain_ IJ:' the maintenance of records thgt. in reasonable detail, accurately and faidy reflect the fransactions and a)  Equity share capital et
dISFII.:IETtICﬁ'LE of the assets of the company; | | | | Sl v =
b) provide rea_sunal:te assurance that fransactions are recnn:l&&_as_ necessary o peninlt preparation _ﬂf financial Balance as at 1 April 2017 -
statarnents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recaipts and expenditures of the :
company are being made anly in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and Issue of equity share capital during the year 17 10.00
¢} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fimely defection of unauthorized acquisiion, use, ar Balance as at 31 March 2018 10.00
disposition ofthe company's asseds that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements Cancelled pursuant o scheme of arrangement (Sea Note 48) 17 (10,00
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting share Suspense account - Alletment of equity shares pursuant to
Bacause of the inherant limitations of intemal financial contrals aver financal reporting, including the possability of scheme of artangement {See Nole 43) i 1.226.27
collusion or improper management override of conlrols, material misstatements due to error o fraud may oceur and not SMANGE i 13 e o013 L
be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the infemal financial controls aver financial reporting to future b} Other equity
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate Particulars Note | Reserves and surplus|  Hems of OCI Total
becauss of changes m conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procadures may deteriorate. Capital| Retained | Remeas-] Excha-
Opinion reserve | eamings | urements nge
In our apinion, 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations, given to us the Halding Company has, in of dﬁﬁ“ﬂ_" differ-
all materal respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reparting and such internal financial benefit) ences
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the intermal control over liability) on trans-
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal lation
comirol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Balance as at 1 Apal 2017 + = . -
Instiute of Chartered Accountants of India. Total comprehensive income for
Other Matters the year ended 31 March 2018
Our aforesald reporl under Section 143(3) (1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the inlemal Profit or loss = [5.19) o 15.19)
financial cantrols over financial reparting, does not consider the subsidiary of the Company as il is nol incorporated in Total comprehensive income (9.19) {2.19)
India. EBalance as at 31 March 2018 . (5.19) | {5.19)
Durzudit reportis not quakfied in respect of above matter, Balance as at 1 April 2018 - (5.19) - (5.19)
For 5. 5. Kothari Mehta & Company Amount adjusted pursuant to
Chartered Accountants Scheme of Arrangemant
Firm Regisiration No. 000756M {See Note 48) 50,808.56 - - 50 806.56
Todal comprehensive income for the
2unil Wahal year ended 31 March 2019
Partner Profil or loss -| 345744 - 3457 .44
hembership No: - 087254 Cther comprehensive income
Date: July 19, 2019 et of tax) - - 2266, 40.06 62.72
Place: New Defhi Total comprehensive income .| 3457.44| 2266 40.06 | 352016
Balance as at 31 March 2019 58,B08.56 | 345225 2266| 4006 | 6332353
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019 Significant accounting policies 1
2 in Lakhs The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
Note | 31March2019 | 31 March 2018 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018
Assets % in Lakhs
(1) Non-cumrent assets Year ended Year ended
(a} Property, plant and equipment 113,67T.50 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
b} Capital work-in-progress 3933 A. Cash flows from operating activities
ic) Other intangible assats G T2.38 Profit before Tax 1,238.45 (5.18)
(d} Financial assets Adpesiments for;
(i) Loans g 1,231.69 Depreciation and amorfisation expense 5.303.34 -
(g} Other non-current assets 14 1,653.47 Finance costs 2.463.24
Total non-current assets 1MT016.37 Provision for doubtful debis 84.78 -
(2) Current assets Loss on saleidiscard of property, plant and equiprment 8.78 -
(@) Inveniores 10 13,446.36 Inkeres! mcome (69.03) -
ib) Financial assels Unrealised forsign exchangs fuctuations (net) (793.02) -
{il Trade receivables 1 4, 561,86 Govenment grants - EPCG scheme (refer note 22) (545.00)
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,956.59 207 6,453.09 .
fiii} Crther bank balances 13 28,54 Operating cash flows before working capital changes T,691.54 {0.19)
liv) Loans a8 3232 Working capital adjustrmants:
iv) Dervatives 24 10,39 - (Increaseldecreasea m rade and alber receivables (1,694.24) -
(wi) Other financial assats 15 291869 - (Increase)decrease n invenlories (3,147.88) -
(¢} Other current assels 16 5824.21 Increasel(decrease) in frade and other payables (546.81) 0.26
Total current assets 28,778.96 5.07 (5,588.93) 0.26
Total assels 145,795.33 207 Cash generated from operating actvities 2, 102.61 [4.93)
Equity and liabilities Income tax paid {net) (408.82) -
Ecquity Net cash from operating activities 1,693.79 (4.93)
(a) Equity share capital 17 - 10.00 B, Cash flows from investing activities
i) Equity share capital suspense 17A 1,226.27 - Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (10,541.02) -
(o) Ciher equity 16 6332353 13.19) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7.40
Total equity 64,549.80 4.81 Interest received 69.03
Liabilities Net cash used in investing activities (10,464.59) -
(1) MNon-current liabilities C. Cash flows from financing activities
{a] Financial Kabilites Proceeds from issue of share capital . 10.00
(i) Borrowings 19 45,966.53 Proceeds from long term borrowings 13,275.58 -
(i} Other financial liabilities 20 1,253.00 Froceeds from shoet term borrowings (net) 1,429.19
(b} Provisions 21 790,82 Eepayment of long term bormowings I1,835.66)
ic) Deferred tax liabiliies (net) 5 1,205.30 Interest paid (2,650.24) -
{d) Other non-currant Kabilities x2 4,529.95 - Procassing feas paid for long term borrowings {12.65) -
Total non-current liabilities 53,745.60 . Net cash flow from financing activities 10,206.23 10.00
(2) Current liabilities Het{demiie}ﬁnmase in cash and cash equivalents 1,435.43 5.07
{a) Financial kabilities ash and cash equivalents at 1 April 2018 [fﬂfer noie 12) 5.07
(i Bormowings 19 4 541.70 Add: Amouni adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Arrangernent
fiij Trade payables 23 (See Nate 48} 516.09 :
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2019 {refer note 12} 1,956.59 5.07
and small enterprises 0.81 MNotes:
total outstanding dues of craditors other (i} Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been preparad under the indirect method as sef cut in Ind &S 7
than micro enterprises and small enierprises B,156.08 0.25 specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
fiiij Other financial Eabilities 20 10,973.37 . (i) jﬁ;?&?g nU;I ﬁ;ﬁ?rﬁ&pg:nit t;mﬁjrgrﬁﬂ itr;'-:ﬂlug movements of capital work-in-progress (including capdal
(b) Clthalr cument liabilities 2 335435 0.01 {iii} Change in liabilities ansing I:Il’rvt:nr'n financang a-?tmligs:
(¢) Provisions 2 383.03 L Particulars As on Adjusted | Cash flows | Fair value As on
(d) Current tax liabdities (net) g 90,59 - 1 March pursuant to changes | 31 March
Total current liabilities 27,499.93 0.26 2018 Scheme of 2019
Total liabilities B1,245.53 .26 Arrangement
Total equity and liabilities 145,795.33 507 i {Fes Hol &)
Significant accounting policies 3 Mon-curmant E_.u:_nrrn'mngs including _
: : current maturities (Note 19) 43,039.71 11,430.93 (369.96) | 54,109.68
THL OO 301G YN Yok 21 VhOOTR gL 0 Current Borrowings (Note 19) 311251 | 142919 4541.70
Notes tothe consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 1. Reporting entity
T in Lakhs Greenpanel Industries Limited ('the Holding Company’ or the ‘Company’) is 8 public company domiciled in india
Mote Year ended Year ended having its registered office situated at Makum Road, P.O. Tinsukia, Assam-T86125, India. The Holding Company
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 has been incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act. The Holding Company is primarily
| Revenue from operations M 59.911.38 invalved in manufactuning of plywood, madium density fibre boards (MDF) and allied products. The Halding
Il Dfiar inoderic 57 1.260.50 Comgany has an overseas whull:,' qwnau:! subsidiary company G:ra_anpanal Sin_gapﬂre F"Ea. Limite_«:i (f-:nrnw{hr
. i known a3 Greenply Trading Pte. Limited), incorporated in Singapore, is engaged inko trading of Medium Density
il Total income (I+Ii) 61,160.89 Fibrebeards and allied products, collectively referred to as the Group”
IV. Expenses Basis of preparation
Cost of matenals consumed 28 29,006.74 Statement of compliance
Purchase of stock in trade 24 E76.24 Thesa consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
Changes m inventories of finished goods, as perthe Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Bules, 2015 as amended, notified under Section 133 of the
work-in-progress and slock in trade 30 (#,210,18) CompaniesAct, 2013 ('Act’)y and other relevant provisions of the Act
Employees benefils expense 3 B,075.65 The consolidated financial statements are authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
Einance cosls 12 2 463.24 attheirmesting held on 18 July 2019,
Depreciation and amortisation expense ] 5,303.34 5 The details of the Company's accounting policies are included in note 3
Other expenzes 4 18,427.41 519 b. Functional and presentation currency
Total expenses (V) 50,042 44 510 These consoidaled financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (T), which is also the Holding
V. Profit before tax (II-1V) 1.236.45 (5.19] ﬁgﬁ?ﬁr&fs functional currency. Al amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
Current tax (499.41) 3 c. Basisof measurement
Bitured 10y oo The consolidated financial statemants have been preparad on historical cost basis, except for the Tollowing items:
VI. Tax expense K ) 221899 . hems Mossorament
Pl ETOUR o i vt w'“!’ i s Derivative financial instrumeanis Fair value
VAL Othar comprehens v inccime -ertain financial assets and financial liabilsdies Fair value
:ﬁmﬁ;ﬂ: l';“;l_'fm”;':::“ Netdefined beneft (assef)  Fabilty Present value of defined benefit abligations
Remeasurements of defined benelit kabilityl(assel) 34.83 4 Nstofssimatesavifidgemants. _
income X efaing 0 fems thal wl ol b o e gl il sl e ol el ol
reclassified to profit or loss (12.47) : : ; . ; :
income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated
Net other comprehensive income not to be financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Aciual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 22,66 underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Rewsions to accounting estmales are recognised
ftemns that will be reclassified subsequently prospactively.
o profit or loss: Judgements
Exchange differences in ranslating financial Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
statements of foreign operations 40.06 amounts recognised in the consalidated financial statements s incheded m note 36 - lease classificalon,
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
subsaquently to profit of loes 40.0 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertzinties that have a significant risk of resulting in a malerial
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of tax) B2.72 adjustment in the consolidated financial statements for the every peniod ended is inchuded in the following notes:
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII=VIH) 352016 (5.19) Mote 4 = useful Me and rezidual value of property, plant and equipment;
X. Earnings per equity share 36 Mote 31 = measurement of defined beneni obligations: key actuarial azsurmptions;
[Face vabue of equity share < 1 aach Meobe 35 - recognition of defamad tax asseis;
|previous year ¥ 1 each]] - MNote 37 - recogniion and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumplions about the
- Basic (%) 282 (0.52) likefihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources:
- Diluted (%) 282 (0.52) - Note 42 —impairment of financial assets: key assumpbons used in estimating recoverable cash flows
Significant accounting policies 3 e, Measurement of fair values
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the A number of the Group's accounting polices and disciosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
consolidated fnancial stalements financial and non-financial assets and liabilties,

|_'r_a-:l|||':l|:|..||_-'.;ﬂ O TIEAR J'.l.;q_:n:'. .

3 feoett




cemipeed f:l'ra-:ln freequones fulge

The Group has an established controd framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
management has overall responssbility for oversesing all significant fair value measurernents and il regularly
raviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustrments. If third party information, sueh as broker
quotes or pricing services, iz used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence cblained
from the third parties fo support the conciusion that thesa valuations meed the requirements of Ind AS, including
e level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuabions should be classified

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Holding Company’s audit committes.

Fairvalues are categorised into different evels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the vakustion
techniques asfollows:

=Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties.

= Lavel 2: inputs other than quoted prices incleded in Level 1 that are obzervabée for the assat or lability, either
directly {i.e. as prices) orindirectly {i.e_ desived from prices).

« Level 3:inputs for the assal or liab#ty that are nof basaed on observable market data (unobsenable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an assat or a liability, the Group uses absenvable market data as far as possibla.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assat or a liability fall into diffarent lavals of the fair value

hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its enfirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowsesi lzvel input that is significant to the entire measuremsant

The Group recognises fransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy atthe end of the reporiing period during
which the change has cocurred

Further information sbout the assumplions made in measwnng fairvalees isincluded innote 41
Basis of consolidation
{I) Subsidiaries

These Consolidated financial statements are prepared on the following basis in accordance with Ind AS on
*Consobdated Financial Staterments”(Ind A3 - 110). spacified undar Section 133 ofthe Companias Act, 2013,

Subsidiaries are enfities contralled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is axposed 1o, of has rights
to, variabla returns from s involvamant with the entity and has the ability 1o affect those retums throwgh its power
ower the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary are included in the Consclidated financial statements from
the date on wiich confrol commences untd the date on which control ceases. Subsidianes considersd in the
Congobdaled financial statements are:

Mame of the Company Country of Incorporation Percentage of Holding
Currenfyear | Previous year
Greanpanal Singapore Fle. Limited Singapore 100% il
(i) Loss of control

When the Group losses confrol over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liahilites of the subsidiary, and
other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the dale the
controd is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss

{iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

The financial latements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries used in the consolidation procedures are
drawn wpto the same reporting date i.e 31 March 2019

The financial slatements of the Hokding Company and itz subsidiany companies are combined on a line-by-line
basiz by adding fogether the book values of like items of asseis, kabilites, income and expenses.

Intra-group balances and fransactons, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from infragrowp
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated against
the investment bo the extent of the Group's interestin the investee, Unrealised losses are ebminated in the sams
way as unrealised gains, bul cnly to the extent that here i no evidence of impairment,

Significant accounting policies

Current and non-current classification

All assets and Rabilibes are classified as curment or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycée and
ather criteria set outin the Schedule 1 o the Act

Assets

Anazsetis classified as current when it safisfies any of the Tollowing criteria:

(i} itisexpectadtobe realised in, orks intended for sake or consumption in the Group's normal oparating cycle;

(it} #tis held primarily for the purpose of baing traded,

(in) itis expectsd o be realised within 12 months alter the reporting date; or

(i) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date

Current assets inchede current portion of non-current financial assets,

Al other assels are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

Aliability is classified as currant when it satisfias any of the following critena:

(i) itisexpectedto ba sattied in the Group's normal operating cycle;

(il) s held prirmarily for the purpose of baing tradad;

(i) itis due o be selled within 12 months after the reparting date; or

(v} the Company does not have an uncondifional nght to defer setiement of fhe ability for at least 12 months
affer the reparting date, Terms of a liabibty that could, at the oplion of the counterparty, rasultin its setiliement
by the issue of aquily instrurments do not affact ils classification,

Current liabiities include currenl porbion of non-current financial liabsities. All ather liabdities are dassified as
non-current. Deferred tax assats and liabilities ane classified as non-curmant assets and liabilities,

Operating cycle

Forthe purpose of currentnon-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Group has ascertained its normal
operating cycle as twelve months, This is based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of
assels for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transachions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional cumrency of the Group at the
axchanga rales prevailing at the dates of the fransactions. Monelary assets and liabilities denominated i foreign
currancies are ranslated into the functional currancy at the exchange rate at the raparting date. Mon-monatary
aszels and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in & forsign currency are franslated &t the exchange rate at the date of the
ransactn,

Exchange differences are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss i the period inwhich they
arise, excepl exchange differences an kong term foreign curmency manetary items accounted for in accordance
with exemption availed by the Company under Ind AS 101.The Group has exercised the option available 1o it
under Para 464 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) (Second Amendment) Rules, 2011 in respect of
accounting for fluctuations in foreign exchange relating to “Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary ilems’. On
transifion to Ind AS, aforesaid option is not avaiable for loans availed after 15t April 2016

(i) Foreign operations

The assets and liabiities of foreign operations {subsidianes) like fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are
franslated info INR, the functional currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the reporing dale.
The income and expenses of forssgn operations are translated into INR at an average rate. The Group has elected
nat to apply Ind AS 103-Business Combinations retrospectively to past business combanations that occurred
befare the transiion date of 1 April 2015. Consequently, the Group has kept the same classification for the past
business combinations as in its pravious GAAP financial statements. \When a foreign operation is disposed off in
its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint condrol i lost, the cumelative amount of
exchange differences related to that foreign operabion recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is
reclassified to profit or koss as part of the gam or loss on disposal, if the Group disposes of part of its interestin a
subsidiary bul refains controd, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount s re-allocated to
Mon-controfing Interast (NCH).

Financial instruments

(i} Recognition and initial measurement

Trade Receivables are inifially recognised when they ane onginated. AR financial assets and financial liabilifies are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a parly to the conlractual provisions of the instrument. Trads
raceivables are initially measured af ransaction price. A fnancial asset or financial liability is initially measurad at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair vabee throwgh profit and loss (FYTPL), transaction costs that are directly
atiributable to itz acguisdtion orissue.

i) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Oninitial recogniticn, a financial assetis classified and measured at .

Amortised cost o

- Fairvalue through Profitor Loss (FYTPL); or

= Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income [FYTOCT).

Financial assets are not reclassifed subsequent to thedr initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group
changesiis business model for managing financial assais.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Afinancial asset is measurad at amortisad cost if it meats both of the following conditions and is not designatad as
at FyTPL:

(a) the assel is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hodd assets to collect contraciual cash fows;
and

() tha contractual terms of the financial aszet give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely payments
of principal and interest{=PPI} on the principal amount oulstanding.

The effective inferast rate (EIR) mathod of amortization is icluded in finance income in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category genesally applies fo kong-term deposits and long-term frade
recevables.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets which are not classfied and measured at amordised cost or Fair value through other
comprehensive income {FWOCTH as described above are measured at FYTPL. On initial recognition, the Group
may imevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOC! as at FYTPL f doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that woubd
obverwise ariss,

Financial assets; Assessment whether contraciual cash flows are solely paymants of principal and interest (SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘prncipal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credil risk associated with
the: principal amount outstanding during a particular penod of time and for other basic landing risks and costs
(@.q. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solaly payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the confractual terms of the instrument. This incledes assessing whether the financial azset contains a
confractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash fiows such that it would not meet this
condition,

In making this assessment, the Group considers;

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:

-terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate featuras;

- prepayrment and axlension fealures; and

- lerms that limit the Group's claim o cash flows from specified assets (.g. non-recourse features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest critenon if the prepayment
armount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early terminalion of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium bo its contractual paramaount, a faature that parmits or
requires prepayment at an amownt that substantially represents the contractual par amouni pluz accrued [but
unpaid) contraciual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for eary termination) is
reated as consistent with this criterion f the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at inital
racagnition,

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at FVTPL: Thess assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Met gains and |osses,
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inchuding any interast or dividend incoma, ane recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assats al amortised cosl These assels are subsaquently measured al amorlised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) methed. The amorlized cost is raduced by impairment lozzes, if any. Interast incorme,
foredgn exchange gains and loszes and impairment are recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
Any gain or logs on derecognition is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in standalone financial statements
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilifies are classified as measured al amorlised costor FYTPL.

Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability 5 cassified as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading. or it is & derivative or / is
dasignated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabiliies at FYTPL are measured a1 fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognisad in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instrumentsin hedge relationships as defined by Ind A5 105,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measurad at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR}
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Consolidated Staterment of
Profit and Loss. Any gain or koss on derecognition is also recognised in Consoidated Staterment of Frofit and
Loss. Interest bearing loans and bomowings are subsequently measured at amortised costusing the EIR method,
Gains and losses are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the Rabilibes are
deracognised as well as through the EIR amartisation process. For trade and ather payables maturing within ona
year from the balanca sheet date. the carmying amounts approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantaes issued by tha Growp are thosa contracts that require payment to ba mada to reimbursae the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails o make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of & debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised mitialty as a liabity at fair value net off
fransaction costs that are directly atiributable 1o the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is
measurad al the higher of the amaunt of loss allowance delermined as par impairmeant requirements of Ind AS
108 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

{iii) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset:

~when the confrachez! ights to the cash flows from the financial assef expire, or

= it fransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fliowes in a transaction in which substandially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asseat are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retaing
substantally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not refain control of the financial asset,

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial kability when its contraciual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
gxpire. The (aroup also derecognises a financial iability when its ierms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified ferms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liabéty basad on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the canying amaunt of the financial liability extinguished and the
new financial Kability with modified teems is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

(iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liab#ties are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when and

only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable fight 1o set off the amounts and iLintends aither 1o satlle
them on a net basis or o realise the assat and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds dervative financial mstruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts, inlerest rale swaps,
lr hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measurad at fair value,
Subsequent to initial recognition, darivatives are measurad at fair value, and changes therein ane racognised in
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Desivatives are camied as financial asseis when the fair value is
positive and a3 financial liabilidies when the fairvalue is negative.

Property, plant and eguipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impgairment losses, ifany.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impart duties and
non-refundabée purchaze taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates. any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition forits intended use and esfimated costs of dismandling and removing the
item &nd resionng the site onwhich it is located,

The cost of a zelf-consinucted item of property. plant and eguipment compeizes the cost of matenials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attibutable to bringing the item to working condition for its infended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and remaoving the item and restanng the site on which it is located.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisiton or construction of those qualifying property, plant and
equipment, which necessanily lake a subsiantial period of time io gel ready for their inlended use, are capitalisad.,
|f sigmificant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have differant useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separale components of property, plant and equipment.

& fived asset is eliminated from the financial statemenis on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its
use. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, péant and equipment is recognised in Consolidated
atatement of Profit and Loss. Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital work-in-
progress, Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated af the lower of their net book value and
fair value less cost bo sell and shown under ‘Current assets’,

Foreign currency exchange differences on oans used for purchases of property, plant and equipment prior to
1 April 2016, are continued 1o be capstalised a5 per policy stated in note 3(b) above,

(i) Subseguent expenditure

subsequent expenditure is capialised only if it is probable that the fufure economic benefits associated with the
expenditurs will flow o the Growp, Ongoing repairs and maimtenance are expenssd as incured,

(iiii} Depreciation and amaortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the wear & recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Depreciation is calculated on cost ofitems of property. plant and equipment less their estimated residual values

aver their estimated usaful lives using the straight line method over the useful Ives of assaels, in the mannar
specified in Part C of Schedule H of the Act.

Assels acquired under finance lease are depreciated over the shorder of the lease term and their useful ife unless
il Is reasonably certain that tha Group will obtain ownership by the and of the lease tarm. Freshold land is not
dapraciated. Leazahold land (inchudes development cost) is amortisad on a straight line basis over the peariod of
respeclive lease, except leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease. Depreciafion methods, useful Ives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted a3 appropriste.

The estimated useful Fves of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Assal Useful life as per Schadule |l
Buildings dto60 years
Plant and equipments 150 25 years
Furniture and fixdures 10years
Vehicles Sto 10 years
Dffice equipments 3o 10years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adpusted if
appropriate. Depreciation on additions (discardidisposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis e, from (upto) the date
onwhich assatis ready for use {dscardedidisposed off ),

Intangible assets
(i) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are inifially measured at cost and subsequently measwed al cost kess accumulated
amarlisation and any accumulated mpairment losses,

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific assed lowhich it refates, Allother expenditure, including expendiiure oninternally generated goodwll and
brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

(iii) Amortisation

Amortisation is cabculated io write off the cost of intangible assets kess their estimated residual valuss over their

esfimated useful lives using the straight4ine method, and i included in depreciation and amortisation in
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
= Computer softwarne B yoars
Amortisation method, useful lives and residual valees are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted

if appropriates.
Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores and
spares are measured af the lowerof cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inveniories is ascertained on the 'weighted average’ basis, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventaries, producton or conversion costs and other costs incurmed in bringing them to their
present locabion and condition. Excise duty was included in the valuabion of closing inventory of finished goods, 1ill
the implementation of Goods and Services Tax,

Raw maferials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products ars not written
down below cost except in cases where malerial prces have decined and il is estimaled that the cost of the
finished products will excead thair net realable value, The comparkson of cost and net realisable value is made
onan item-by-item basis.

The ned realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with refarence to the sefiing prices of related finishad
products.

In the case of manufactured invantories and work-in-prograss, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed
production overheads based on normal operating cagacity.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the zale.

Assessment of net realisable value is made at each subsequant reporting date. When the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be writhen down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an
increase in net realisable value because of changed economss circumsiances, the amount of the write-down is
reversed,

Impairment
(i} Impairment of financial instruments: financial assets

Financial asseis, other than those at FVTPL, are assassed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Afinancial asset is ‘credil- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occumad.

The Group recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or Ioss. Loss allowance for frade receivable with no significant financing
component is measwred at an amount equal to lifetime of the ECL, For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured unless there has been a significant increase in cradif rsk from initial recognition in which
case those are measured at lifetime of the ECL. The amount of expected cradit losses (or reversal} that is
required o adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required 1o be recognized is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

In case of frade receivables, the Group follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind A3 109 Financial
Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require
the Group to frack changes in credi nisk, The Group calculates the expected credit losses on frade recevables
Lsing a provision matrix an the basis of its historscal credit loss experiance,

When determining whether the cradit isk of a financial asset has increased significantty since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available withcut undue costar effort. This includes bath quantitative and qualitative informaftion and
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analysis, basad on the Group's historcal experience and informed credit assessment and including subsequent
information. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducied from the gross
camying amount of the assels

The gross camrying amount of a financial assed is written off (either partially or i full} 1o the extent that there iz no
redlistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the deblor does not have
assetsar sources of meome that could generate sufficeent cash flows fo repay the amounts subject o the wiite-off
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subjact to enforcament activities in order to comply with
the Groug’s procedunes for recovery of amounts due,

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assels, other than inventaories and deferred tax assels, are reviewad at each reparting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recovarable amount is estimated.

Faor impairment testing, assets that do not generate independant cash inflows are grouped togather into cash-
genarating units (CGUs). Each CGU represants tha smaliest group of assats that genaratas cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. The recoverable amount of 8 CGLU [or an
individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs fo sell. Value in use is based on the
eslimated fulure cash flows, dscounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
markel assassments of the time value of money and the risks spacific to the CGU (or the assel),

The Group's corporate assels (e.g. corporate ofice for providing suppor to varous CGUs) do nol generate
independent cash inflows. To determing impairment of a corporate assed, recoverable amount is determined for
the CGUs to which the corporate asset balongs. An imgairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds itz estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised inthe Consolidated
Staterment of Profit and Loss. Impairment Joss recognised in respect of 2 CGL is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then fo reduce the carnying amounts of the ather
assets of the CGU {or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis

Animpairment loss in respect of ather assels for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Group reviews 2l each reporting date whether thera is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in tha estimates used to determine the
recoverabie amount. Such a reversal i made only to the extent that the assal’s carmying amount does not exceed
the carmying amount that would have been determined. nef of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment koss
had been recognised,

Infangible assets with indefinite wseful lives and infangible assefs not vef available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whensver there is an indication that the asset may be impaired,

Mon-current assets or disposal group held for sale

Mon-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assels and Babilities are classified as hedd for sale if itis highly
probable that they will be recoversd prmanly throwgh sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assels, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carmying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then fo remaining assets and
liabilities on pro rata bass, except that no loss is allocated 1o invenlones, financial assets, deferred tax assets,
employes benefil assets, and biological assets, which continue 1o be measured in accordance with the Group's
other accounting policies. Losses on indtial classification as hedd for sale and subsaquent gains and losses an
re-messurement are recognised in profitor loss.

Onca clazsified as held-for-zale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipmeant are no langer amortized or
depreciated.

Employee benefils

(i) Short-term employeae benefits

Short-tarm emploves benefil obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
ralated sarvice is provided. A liability is recognizsad for the amaount expected to ba paid a.g., under sharl-tarm cash
bonug, if the Growp has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount ag a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amouni of abligation can be estimated reliabiy,

(i} Defined contribution plans

A definad contribution plan is a post-amploymant benafit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
Emplovees’ Provident Fund established under The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act 1952 and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Group makes specified
monthly confributions under employee provident fund 1o Government adminstered provident fund scheme
Obligations for contributions to defined confribution plans are recogrised as an employes benefil expenss in
Consolidatad Staternent of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the ralated services ane rendesed by
emplovees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future paymeniz is available.

(i) Defined banefit plans

A dafined benafit plan ks a post-employmant benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's
gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefid plan. The Group's net obigation in respeci of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior pencds,
discounting thal amount and deductng the fair value of any plan assels. The calculation of defined bensfi
obligation is performed quarterly by an independent quakified actuary using the projected unit credil method
Whaen the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is imited 1o the present value
of economic Benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in fubuere confribufions
fo the plan [‘the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given
to any minimum funding requirements., The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined
benefit plan immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

Femsasurements of the net defined benefit liabisty, which comprise aciuarial gains and losses, the rebern on pdan
assets (excluding intersst) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other
comprehensive incoma (OCI). The Group determines the nel interest expense (income) on the nel defined
banafit liabdity (assat) for the peniod by applying the discount rate usaed to measure the defined banadit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period {o the then-net defined benefit liability {azset), taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit Bability (asset) during the period as & result of contributions and benefit
payments, Met interest expense and obher expenses related to defined beneft plans are recognised in
Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed orwhen a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit that relates fo
past service (‘past service cost or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately
in Consolidatad Statement of Profit and Less. The Group recognises gains and lossas on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the setflement occurs.

{iv) Other long-term employes banefits

The Group's net abligation in respect of long-term amployee benefits other than post-employment benefils i the
amaunt of fulure benefit that employess have eamead in return for their service in the current and pricr paricds;
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Such benefits are in form of leave encashment that
atorue fo employess in retumn of their senace. The calculation of other long term employee benefits is performed
quarterly by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements of the net
defined benefit lability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets {excluding interest)
and the effect of the asset cailing (if any, excluding interast), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
{OC1). Metinterest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

[v) Termination benefits

Termination benafits are axpensed at the earfier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the affer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a restrecturing. If benefits are not expectad to be seted wholly
within 12 monihs of the reporiing date, then they are discounted.

Provisions {other than for employes benefils)

A provision is recognised if, as a rasult of a past event, the Group has a prasant legal or constructive abligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to setile the
obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expecied future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current marked assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific to the Rability.

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating kosses are not provided
for,

The amount recognised as @ provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie the present
obligation at the end of the reparting panod, taking mlo account the nsks and encadainties surraunding the
abligation.

Revenue

(i) Sale of goods

Effective 1 Apel 2018, the Group adopled Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Custorners”, The effect on
adaption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant. The Group manufactures and sells in plywood and alied products,
medum density fibreboard and aled products. Sakes are recognised when control of the products has
fransferred, being when the products are delivered to the dealer, the dealer has full dsscretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled cbdigation that cowdd affect the dealer's acceptance of the
products. Dalivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risk of cheolescence
and logs have been transfarred to the dealer, and either the dealer has acceptad the products in accondanca with
Ihe sales contract, the acceplance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
atceptance have been salisfied.

The praducts are often sold with retrospective valume discounts based on agogreqate sales ower a 12 months
period, cash discount on payment within specified period, promotional gift on achieving specific targets, quality
claims if claims made in the specified period and other promotional expensas such as tours and travel packages
1o dealer, etc. Bevenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the
estimated volurme discounts, cash dizgcounts, quality claims and promotional expenses_Accumulaied experience
is used o estimate and provide for the discountsiclaims/provisions, using the expectad value method, and
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it s highly probable that a significant reversal will not oecur, A refund
liability {netted off with irade receivables) is recognised for expected volume discount payables, expected cash
discount payabdes and expected quality claims to dealers in relation to sale made undil the end of reporiing period
Provision (included im other current Rabilities} is recognised for expected sales promotional expenses against the
sales made until the end of reporting period. Mo element of financing i deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term of 30-80 days, which is consistant with market practica.

(i} Rental income

Renial income is recognised as part of other income on a straight-ling basis over the term of the lease except
whara the rentals are structurad to increase in line with expacted genaral inflation.

(i} Insurance claim
Insurance claim dwe o uncerdainty in realization are accounted for on acceptance basis.
Government Grants

srants from Govennment are recognised at their fair wvalue where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with the conditions attachad thereto.

Government grants refated 10 revenue are recognized in the Consclidated Staternent of Profit and Losz on a
systermatic and rafional basis in the periods in which the Company recognises the related costs for which the
grants are intended 1o compansate and are natted off with the related expandifure. If not related 1o a specific
expenditune, it 15 taken as income and prasentad under "Other Income”.

Government grants relating lo property, plant and equipment are Ireated as deferred income and are credited to
the statemeant of profit and koss on a systemalic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset lo malch
them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate and presented within other income

Leases

(i) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Atinception of an arrangement, it is determinad whather the arangament is or containg a lease. The arrangement
5, or containg, & lease if fuffilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 2 specific asset or assets and the

arrangement comveys & right to wse the assst or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified n an
arrangement.

Abinception or onreassessment of the amangement that contains a lease. the payments and oiher consideration
required by such anarrangament are separatad into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis
af their ralative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance leasa that itis impracticable 1o separate the payments
reliably, then an asseat and a liability are recognised at an amount equal 1o the fair value of the underlying assat.
The liatility is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the kability is recogrisad using the
incremental bormowing rate,

continseed on next page...
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coonbinued from previoos bage

(i) Assets held under leases

Leasas of property, plant and eqguipment that transfer 1o the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of :

ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assels are measured initially at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments, Subssquent to inilial recognition,
the #ssets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy apphcable to siméar owned assets.

Assals hedd under leases that do not fransfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship
{i.e. operating leases) are nof recognised in the Group's Balance Sheet,

(iiij Lease payments
Payments made wunder operating leases ara generally recognisad in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

on a straight-ling basis over the lerm of the kease unless such payments are structurad fo increase in line with
expectsd gensral inflation 1o compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary costincreases,

Leass ncentives received are recognised as an inlegral part of the tolal lease expenss over the tarm of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outsianding fability. The finance change is allocated to each period duning the lease term so asfo
produce a constant periodic rate of interast on the remaining bakance of the Bability.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Group's
right to receive payment is established,

Inferest income or expensa is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective inferest rate’ is the
rale that exacily discounis estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected lite of the financial
instrument fo: the gross camying amount of the financial asset or- the amortised cost of the financial
liaklity.

In calculafing nterest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross camying amount of

the aszset (whan the asset i not cradit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the Eability. However, for financial
assels that have become credil-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate (o the amortised cost of the financial asset, If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of curnant tax and deferred tax. Currant tax and defierred tax s recognisad in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recagnised directly inaquity ar in OCI

(i) Currenttax

Current tax comprises the expecied tax payable or recenvable an the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adpusiment o the tax payable or recaivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current fax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considerning the uncertainty, if any, related fo
income taxes. It is measured using 1ax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current fax assets and current tax liabilities are off set only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is ntended fo realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis orsimultaneousty,

{ii) Deferred tax
Defermed tax &5 recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carmying amounts of assets and
liabilities for fimancial reporting purposes and the comesponding amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base).

Deferred tax iz also recognised in respec of camed fonward fax losses and tax credits. Defemed fax is nod
recognised for:

-temporary differences arizing on the initad recognition of assets or liabilities in a ransaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- iemiporary differences related fo investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements fo the extent
that the Growp iz abde to contral the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and i is probable that they
will mat reverss in the foresesable fulure; and

-laxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred fax assets are recognised fo the extent thaf it is probable that future taxable profits will be avaiizble
againzt which they can be used. The axistence of unused fax losses is strong evidenca that fulure taxable profit
may not ba available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset
onky 1o the extant that it has sufficient taxable temporary diferances or thers is convinging other evidance that
sufficsent taxable profit will be available aganst which such defered lax assel can be realised,

Defarred tax assals — unrecognised of recognised, are reviewed al each reporing date and are recognisad/

reduced to the extent that it is probablel no bonger probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
reahsed,

Defarrad tax s measured a1 the fax rates that are expecied bo apply fo the penod when the assed is reaksed or the
liabiity s settied, based on the laws that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporfing date, to recover or settle the camying amount of its assets and liabilties,

Defarmed lax assets and liabilities are offset i there i5 a legally enforceable right fo off sef current tax liabilies and
assets, and they relate to income taxes kevied by the same fax authority on the same taxabde entity, or on different
tax enfifies, but they intend to selile current tax liabilities and assats on a net basis or their tax asseds and liab#ties
will be realized simultanecusly.

In case of tax payable as Minimum Alternative Tax [MAT ) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
creditavailable under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and ko the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the pariod for which tha MAT cradit can be
carred forward for sat-off against the normal tax Bability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is raviewed at each
balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidenca no longer exests

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign cumency
borrowings [o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment 1o interest costs) incurrad in connection with the
borrowing of funds, Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or consfruction of an assed which
necessarily take a substantial penod of time fo get ready for theirintended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other bormowing costs are recognisad as an expense inthe period inwhich they are incurmed.

Whera therg is an unrealised exchange loss which 15 treated as an adjustment to interest and subseguently there
iz a realized or unrealised gain in respect of the setilement or iranslation of the same bomowing, the gain to the
axtent of the foss previously recognised as an adjustmentis recognised as an adjusiment to interest.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity, netof any tax effects.

Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liabdity on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Baard of Directors of the Group

Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash-on-deposit with banks, The Group considers all highly lquid

investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily
canvertibie fo known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect mathod, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of & non-cash nature, any deferrals or acoruals of past or fulure operating cash receipls or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Earnings pershare

Basic eamings per share 5 calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity
sharehoiders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duning the period

For the purpase of calculating dilvted earmings per share, tha nel profit or loss for the parod attributable to equity
sharehotders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the perod are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutne potentisl equty shares.

Operating segment

An operabing segment is & component of the Group thal engages in busmess actvities from which i may am
revenuas and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that refate to transactions with any of the
Group's offer comganents, and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regudarly by the Chief Operafing Decision Maker (CODM) to make decizions about
resources to be aflocated fo the segments and assess their peformance. The CODM consists of the Executive
Chairman, Managing Director & CEQ and Chief Financial Officer,

The Growp has currently two reportable segments namely:
i} Plywood and allied products, and

iy Medium density fibreboards and alied products
Determination of fair values

Fair values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the fofiowing methods.
Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair vabues is disclosad in the
notes specific 1o that asset or liability,

(i} Mon-derivative financial assets

Mon-derivative financial assats ara initially measured af fair value. If the financial assat is not subsaquently
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss, then the initiad measurement includes direclly attributable
iransaction cosis, These ane measured at amortised costorat FYTPL. Investments in quoted equily instruments
are measured at FVTPL

(il) Trade and other receivables

The fair values of frade and other recaivablas are estimated at the prasent value of fulure cash fiows, dscounted
at the market rate of interest at the measurement date. Shart-tarm recaivables with no stated interest rate are
mieasured at the original invoice amount if the effect of discounting is immaterial. Fair value is determined st initizl
recogniion and. for disclosure purposes, ateach annual reportng date.

{iii) Derivative financial liabilities

The Group uses derivative financial mstruments, such as forward currency contracts and inlerest rate swaps to
hedge s foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such dervative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative condract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.

() Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Ofher non-derivalive financial liabilities are measured at fair value, at intial recogniion and for disclosure
purpases, at each annual reporting date. Fair value is calculated based on the present value of fulure principal
and interast cash fiows, discowlad at the markat rate of inbenest at the maasurement date.

. Standards izsued but not yet effective
Ind A5 116, Leases

The Holding Company 5 required to adgopt Ind AS 116, Leases from 1 Apnl 2019, Ind AS 116 introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a nght-of-use asset representing s
right 1o wse the underying asset and a lease lability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There
are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and keases of low-value dems, Lessor accounting remains
simdlar to the current standard - e, lessors continue to classify leases as finance or oparating leases. i replacas
existing leases guidance, IndAS 17, Leases.

The Holding Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its financial staterments but
has nat vet completed its detailed assessment, The quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the financial
staternents in the period of initial application s nol reasonably estimable as al present.

The Holding Company will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of [and, vehicles and office
premises facilifies (see Note 38). The nature of expenses relatad o those leases will now change bacause the
Holding Company will recognise & depreciation charge for righi-of-use assets and interest expense on lease
liabalities.

Prewviously, the Holding Company recognised operating lease sxpense on a siraighi-ling basis aver the term of
the lease, and recognised assets and liabilties only to the extent that there was a timing difference between
achual lease payments and the expensa recognised.

epaper. jansatta. com
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On praliminary assessment, for leases other than short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the Holding

Cormpary will recognize a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with the cumulative effect of -

appéiving the siandard by adjusting retained earmings net of taxes. There will be consequent reclassification in the
cash flow categarnies in the statement of cash flows

Transition
The Holding Company plans 1o apply Ind AS 116 initially on 1 April 2018, using the modified refrospective

approach, Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopling Ind AS 116 will be recognised as an adjustment 1o the
opening balance of retained eamings at 1 April 2018, with no restatement of comparative information.

The Holding Company plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition.
This means that it will apply Ind &% 116 to all confracts entered into befose 1 April 2019 and identified 25 [eases in
accordance with Ind A5 17

Property, plant and equipment

=ee accounting policy innote 3id) and {g)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Freehold | Bulldings|Plant and | Furniture | Viehicles | Office Total
land equip- and Bguip=
ment fixtures ment
Cost {Gross carrying
amount)
Balanca at 1 Ageil 2017 - - - . x , 5
Additions . . = : B . .
Disposals’ discard - . P . . . ”
Exchange differences on
transtation of foreign
operations . . . . E . .
Balance at 31 March 2014 - . . . fE ; :
Balance at 1 Apnl 2018 - - - g “
Add: Amount adjusied
pursuant io Scheme of
Arrangamen
(See Mole 48) 4,792,75| 6,078.97|41,536.25| 1,358.31 | 4,307.00 | 94419 | 5901747
Additions T41.14| 6,213.75| 7242250 | 1,156.74 | 32254 330.88 | 81,187.55
Disposalsl discard - = (32.30) (14.40) | (17.95) (64.65)
Exchange differences on
transiation of foreign
operations - - - 1250 14483 2.52 159.65
Balance at
31 March 2019 5,533.89|12,292.72 (113,026.45 2,527.35 | 4,759.97 | 1,259.64 |140,300.02
Accumulated
depreciation
Balance at 1 Apnil 2017 - - - . - - .
Cepreciation for the year . . - . " - .
Adjustments/ disposals - - - . = - .
Exchange differances on
transiation of foreign
operations = . - . & . "
Balance at 31 March 2018 - . - . -
Balance at 1 April 2018 - . - . 5 ; .
Add: Amount adjusted
pursuant io Scheme of
Arrangemment
iSee Mote 48) -| 1,868.65| 1746548  529.78 [ 1,008.59  517.90 | 21,390.40
Depreciation for the year «|  390.82| 402625 203.51( 47641 161.60 | 5258.59
Adjustments/ disposals - (0.00) (21.79) (12.32) | [(14.36) (48.47)
Exchange differences on
transiation of foraign
operations - . - 241 19.17 0.42 22.00
Balance at
31 March 2019 -| 2,259.47|21,460.94 1 T35T0( 149185 665.50 | 26,622.52
Carrying amounts (net)
AL 31 March 2016 . - 2 : R . [
At 31 March 2019 5,533.89(10,033.25| 92,456,51 | 1,791.65| 3,26812 | 504.08 [113,677.50
(b) Security

Az at 31 March 2019, propertes with a camying amount of < 1,11,456.48 lakhs (31 March 2018 < Nil) are
subject io first charge to secured bormowings (see Note 19).

Capital work-in-progress
See accounting policyinnote 3(d) and |g)

31 March 2018 | 31 March 2013
Al the beginning of the year - -
Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Arangament
[See Mote 48) T3,348.65
Additions during the year 2,406.86 -
Capilalised during the year ?5.3?5.13-“ -
At the end of the year 319,33 -
Capital work-in-progress includes:
Expenditure incurred during construction period on new
manufacturing facility of the group:
At the beginning of the year =
Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Schame of Arranganmant
[See Note 48) 7,056.14
Additions during the year:
Finance costs 517.26 -
Employees benefils expense 281.78 -
Legal and professional fees 236,22 =
Power & fuel expense 821.30
Miscellangous expenses 18791
2,044 47 =
Less: Capitalised during the year 9,100.61 -
At the end of the year - -

Motes:
fa} At 31 March 2019, general bomowing costs capitalised during the year amounted to £ 114.03 lakhs
{31 March 2018; ¥ Nil), with a capitalisation rate of 8.00%

(b] Asat 31 March 2013, properties under capital work-in-progress with a camnving amount of £ 379,33 lakhs
{31 March 2018; ¥ Nil) are subject to first charge to secured bormowings (see Note 18).

Otherintangible assets
Sea accounting palicy in note 3{e) and (g)
{a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Technical Tatal

knowhow

Computar
software

T r——

Cost (Gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2017 . - -
Addilions . 2 -
Disposalsiwrite-off . . .

Balance at 31 March 2018

Balance at 1 Agpril 2018

Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Schama of Arrangemant
(See Note 43) 22.m .

Additions x
Disposalsiwrite-off E = F
Balance at 31 March 2019 220 - 222.01
Accumulated amortisation
Balkance at 1 April 2017
Amortisation for the year
Adjustments’ disposals s - -
Balance at 31 March 2018 = 3 .

222

Balance at 1 April 2018 . o .

Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement
(See Note 48)

Amaortisation for the year
Adpsiments’ disposals

104.88 -
44,75 -

104,88
44.75

Balance at 31 March 2019 149.63 . 149.63
Carrying amounts (net)

“Al31 March 2018

At 31 March 2019 72,38 - 7238

Loans

{Unsecured, considered good)
31 March 2018
Non-current
Security deposits
Loan to employees

1,201.69
32.00
1,233.69

Current
Loan to emplovees 32.32

1,266.01

Current tax liabilities

See accounting policy in note 3{o)

31 March 2019
90,59

31 March 2018

Income tax liabilities

Inventories

{Walued af ithe fower of cost and nef reaffzallie value)
See accounting policy in note 3{1)

11.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

17,

17A.

18.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Riaw malerials 3,695.02 £
[ncluding in transit ¥ 376.82 lakhs (31 March 2018 il
Work-in-progress 242313
Finizhed goods 5418.79
[including in transit ¥ 1,336.32 lakhs (31 March 2018 T Nil)]
Stores and spares 1,909.42 -

13,446.36 -

Total carmying amount of inventones is pledged as securities
against borrowings, refer note 19,
The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2018: ¥ N,

These are recognised as expenses dunng the respective period and includad in changes inmventories of slock in
brade.

Trade receivables

31 March 2013 31 March 2018
Current
Unzecurad
- Considerad good 4,561.86 -
- Cradi Impairad 326.38 -

4,888.24 s

Less: Loss for allowancas
- Credit Impairad 326.38
Met trade receivables 4 561.86 -
Of the above
Trade receivables from related parties 1,211.27 -
Motes:

{@) Mo trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the group either severally or jointly
with any other person, Mor any trade or ather receivables are due from firms of private companies
respactively inwhich any direclor is a partner, a director of a member

ib)  Information about the group's exposure fo credil and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade
receivables are disclosed in note 42, Provision as disclosed above is on case 10 case basis as identified by
the management.

(g) For terms and condilions of trade receivables owing from related parties, see note 39.(d) For recenabies
securad against borrowings, see note 19

Cash and cash equivalents
Ses accounting policy in note 3(s)

3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash on hand 19.97 0.23
Chegues in hand
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 836.62 4.84
- On deposit accounts (with orginal maturities up to 3 months) 1,000.00 -

1.956.59 507

Other bank balances

M March 2019 31 March 2018

Bank depasits due to mature atter 3 months of original maturities

but within 12 manths of the reporling date” 28.54 z
*Pledgediodgad with varous government authorities as security
Other non-current assets
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 207.98
Others
Unmatured finance charges 136.24 -
Leasehold land prepayments 1,225.51
Deposits against demand under appeal andior under dispute 14.70
Amoaent due from sales tax authorities 59.04
1,653.47
Other financial assets
3 March 2019 31 Masch 2018
Currant
Government grants receivable 289273
Export incentive receivabie 18.95
Insurance claim recesvable 3.78
Inferast Receivable 322 -
2,918.69 -
Other current assats
3 March 2018 31 Masch 20128
(Linsecured, considersd good)
To parties other than related parties
Advances for supplies 288.19 -
Advances 1o employess 15.65 -
Others
Prepaid expenses 67261
Unmatured finance charges 771.26
Leasehold land prepayments 16.31
Balance with goods and service fax authonlies 4,754.19
Incorme tax refundable . .
5,824.21
Equity share capital
See accouming palicy in nofe 3q)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Authorised
150,000,000 (31 March 2018; 10,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 1 each® 1,500.00 100.00
" Increase in authorised capital is pursuant 1o scheme of arrangement
Izsued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Mil (31 March 2013: 1,000,000} equity shares of T 1 each 10.00

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding atthe beginning and at the end of the reporting year

31 March 2013 +1 March 2018
Mumber  Amount Mumber  Amount
Al the commencerment of the year 1,000,000 10.00 - -
Add: Issued during the year - 1,000,000  10.00
Lezs: Cancelled pursuant to scheme of amangerent
{Zee Nofe 48) 1,000, 000 10.00 - -
At the end of the year - 1,000,000 10,00

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has a single class of equity shares with par value of ¥ 1 per share, Accordingly, all
equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Holding Company's residual assals on
winding up. The equity shareholders are enlitlad 1o receive dividand as declared by the Holding Company
from time to tima. Tha vioting rights of an aquity shareholder on a poll (nof on show of andg) are in proportion
1o its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Hodding Company. Vobing rights cannot be exercised inrespect
of shares on which any call or other sums presently payabée has not been paid. Failure {o pay amy amount
called up an shares may lead to their forfeiture, On winding up of the Holding Company, the holders of equity
shares-will be enlitled to receive the residual assets of the Holding Company, remalning after distibution of
all preferential armounts, in proportion to the numbear of equity shares hald.
{c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of fully paid up equity shares
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each Number B Number S
Greenply Industries Limited 1,000,000 100.00%

{d) The Holding Company has not reserved any shares for isswe under opfions and contracts/commitments for
the sale of shares! disinvestment.

{e) The Holding Companny for the period of five years immediately precading tha reporting date has not:
(i) Allotted any class of shares as fully paid pursuant to contract|s) without payment baing received in cash.
(i) Allotted fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares,
(iil) Bowght back any class of shares.

Equity share capital suspense

Equity share capital suspense 1,226.27

Mote: 12,26 27 355 (21 March 2018: Mil) eguity shares of Re. 1 each, fully paid, to be izsued pursuant to scheme
of arrangement of Greenply Industries Limited with the Holding Company. (See Note 43)

DOther equity

3 March 2019 31 Masch 2018
Capital reserve
Al the commencement of the year - -
Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Amangement
[See Note 48) 54,808.56
59,808.56
Retained sarnings
At the commencemant of the year {3.19) -
Add: Profit for the year 3,457 44 {5.19)
3,452.25 (5.19)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
At the commencement of the year
Exchange differences in franslating financial statements of foreign
operations 40.06
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans 22.66
62.72 -
63,323.53 (5.19)

(a) Description, nature and purpose of reserve: (i) Capital reserve: The capilal reserve 15 created on accownt
of the net assels transfamad pursuant o the scherme of arrangement. (i) Retained earmings: It comprises of
accumulated profit {loss) of the Grous. (i) Other comprehensive incomea [OCH): It cornprizes of remeasurameants
of the net defined benefit plans on acluarial valuation of grabuty and exchange differences in franslating financial
statements of foreign operations

comtinued o0 next Pape...
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(b} Disaggregation of changes in items of OCI : 3 March 2018 31 March 2018 : 31. Employees benefits expense
1March 2019 31 March 2018 Current : See accounting policy in note 3(i)
Retained eamings Foreign exchange foreard conbracis 12.74 Year ended Year ended
Exchange differencas in translating financial siatements of foreign Foreign exchange interest rate swaps (23.13) . 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
operations 40.06 (Asset)iLiability (10.39) - Salaries, wages, bonus, etc. 7.208.25
Remeasuraments of definad benafit liability/ (asset) 22.66 Information about the Group's exposure to inferest rate and cummency risks related 1o derivatives is disclosad Contribution to provident and other funds 452.01
62.72 = in nota 4.2, Expensas related to post-amployment defined benefit plan 151.33
15. Borrowings 28 Other current Habilities Expenses related to compensaled absences 160.96
See accounting policy in note 3b), (c) and (p) Y h2019 31 March 2018 Staff wetfare expenses 103.10
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 Statutory duss 652.92 0.01 8,075.65
Non-current borrowings Deferrad incoms on Govermment grants 2.400.00 } Salaries, wages, bonus, efc. includes T 627,75 lakhs (31 March 2018 T Nil) relating to outsource manpower cost
Secured Advance from customers 301.43 . Notes:
Term |oans : 3.354.35 0.0 : (a) Defined contribution plan: Employes benafits in tha form of provident fund is considared as defined
: : contribution plan and the contributions fo Em 23’ Provident Fund nization established under The
F?;;EEHE“ —_— 38,646.86 BRE . :::*;‘;:ﬁ:;“;:ﬂ::;e il Emp-lu:-yees'.i’?cmidem Fund and Mismlmneuuﬁ@ims Act1952is chG;Egaaummesmtementnr Profit and
Hibieonis 13.479.19 _ . / Loss ofthe yearwhen the c.untrlhutmnﬁtc-th_e respective ﬁJI‘rI:IE-.EI'I.i} due . : ¢ ¢
Year ended Vearended {b) Defined beneft plan: Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligations
32,126.05 i : 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 : and is provided for on the basis of third party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at
Less: Current maturities of bong term borrowings (refer note 20) T,663.70 - : Sale of products 58,262.47 - the date of the: Balance Sheel. Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entillad to
44 462,35 Other operating revenue graluity on terms not less favourable than the provissons of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
Loan against vehicles 1,983.63 Government grants {e} Actuarial valuation of gratuity liability
Less: Current maturities of loan against vehicles {refer note 20) 479,45 - - Refund of goods and service tax and excise duty (refar note 47) 876.55 - Defined benefit cost
1,504.18 = - Govemment grants - EPCG scheme {refer nole 22) 545.00 - Cument service cost 106.24
45 966,53 Exporl incenlives 84.02 i Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 45.08
Current borrowings Miscellaneous income 143.35 A Defined benefit cost in Statement of Profit and Loss 151.32
Sacured 1,648.92 Remeasuremeants from finanal assumptions 8.10 -
From banks 50,911.39 Remeasurements from expenience adusiments (42.92) -
Foresgn currency loan - buyers credil 256.47 - Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products with the contracted price Defined benefit cost in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (34.82)
Foreign currency loan - Packing Credit 201.43 = Confracted price 62 466.51 : Total defined benefit cost in Statement of Profit and Loss and OCI 116.50
Rupes loans - repayable on demand 1,688.81 Less : Trade discounts, volume rebales elc, {4,204.04) - Movement in defined benefit obligation
2.236.71 Sale of products 58 262 47 . Balance at tha baginning of the year 602.65
Unsecured Disaggregated revenue information Interast cost 106.24 -
From banks The disagaregation of the Group's revenue from confracts with customers as under: Current service cosl 45.08
Channel finance assurance facility 210,65 - Yaar ended 31 March 2019 Actuanal (gains)’ losses recognised in ofther comprehensive income (34.52)
Foreign currency loan - bill discounting 159,68 Segment Plywood  Medium Density Total Benefits paid (34.2T)
Rupes loans - bl discounting 1,934.66 and allied  Fibre Board and Balance at the and of the year 684.88
2304.99 products  allied products Sensitivity analysis
4,541.70 Type of Goods: Salary escalation - Increase by 1% 737.65 -
information about the Group's exposure to credit and currency risks, and koss allowances related to barrowings Finished goods 14.116.15 414532 58,26247 Salary escalation - Decrease by 1% 639.20
are disdiosed innote 42 Sale of products (incheding exciss duty) (&) 14,116.15 4414632 5826247 Withdrawal rates - Increase by 1% 89,00
(A) Terms of repayment Revenue by geography: Withdrawal rates - Decrease by 1% 679.88
Name of the lender Interest  Repayment schedule Yearof 31 March 31 March - India 14,112.82 37,268.16  51,380.38 Discount rates - Increase by 1% £39.32
Fata maturity 20149 2018 - Ouiside India :‘ri! E:_E?:EJE ﬁ.;!;_!_ijl:_:lvg_'_ Discount rates - Decrease by 1% 737 B4 A
(i) Foreign currency term loans Total revenue from confracts with custormers '14,115.15 m__H,HE-H 58,262 47 Actuarial assumptions
1I}I?nrliln.asl::::nhc Baﬁ;nm ” E month He$a§gblfé3&;aéf1y§:rllyhh M28-29 3261119 Year ended 31 March 2018 Mortality table LALM 2006-2008
Iakuh;e F31E;.?ar['-i:h 3018: Nilj] +;gbn31r¢_ e e Segment : l:d’"";f;ﬂ :ﬂ;“;ﬂﬁ"?ﬁ Total Discount rate (per annum) 7.70%
Standard Chartered Bank 3 month  Repayable at quarterly 02435 7,602.10 products allied products o v P ) sl
[USD 10 lakhs Libor  rest 20 of USD 5.50 lakhs Type of Goods: — Withdrawal rate 1% - 8%
(31 March 2018: Nil]] +1.55% Finished goods . Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 512
40,213.29 Sale of products (inchuding excise duty) (A) 5 -:I:i:u!.'-rr'-:-unl incurred as expense for defined contribution to Provident Fund is ¥ 338,33 lakhs (31 March 2018
Unamortised processing fees (1,566.43) i i gw'gmpm_ < Nil}
16, 646,96 : ' 32. Finance costs
= - India , .
(ii) Rupee term loans i m— " See accounting policy in note 3(p)
HOFC Bank Limited dyear  Repayable at quarterly rest. 202425  10,000.00 Total rovorins i contissts il bt : Year ended Year ended
MCLR  20of 400.00 lakhs and one : Cectl 3 March 2019 31 March 2018
tme payment of  2000.00 Lskhs The reconciliabion of the revenue from confracts with customers and other operating revenue is given below : Interest expensa on financial liabdities measured at amortised cost 2,326.39 -
Axis Bank Limited 3year  Repayable atquarterly rest  2023-24  2,500.00 Year ended 31 March 2013 Exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost 381.44
MCLR  16of 156.25 lakhs Segment Plil_;'w::ll?dd FM:!;U: D-Edna-lﬂ Total Other bomowing cost 272 67
i - i and allie i oard &
State Bank of India rlnEﬁF; Eir[tav%bée .:;%1 Iﬂ;:::eﬂnr rest 201920 304.00 products - aiiad prodiste Less: Finance cost capilalised (517.26) :
+),75% Sale of goods (including excise duty): ; 2463.4 _
State Bank of India fyear Repayable alquarteryrest 201920  500.00 - External customers 14,116.15 dgsay  saeay 7 Danmelnlionantanortisktion spenns
MCLRE  dof 126.00 lakhs . Inter-sagmant ) . . See accounting policy in note 3(d)ii) and (e)iii)
i TR Other Operating Revenue 14.12 161480  1,648.02 » I'T:aar:i?li.:?]:g § JE:;EE?;
Unamartised processing fees {24.81) e 1415027 45,761.12 +3.911.38 Depreciation of propery, plant and eguipment 5,258.50
13,479.19 Inter-segment elimination 2 : : Amorisation of intangible assets 44.75
o 52.126.05 Less: Other Operating Revenue (34.12) (1,614.80)  (1,648.92) 5.303.34 i
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,116.15 44,146.32 58,262.47
(. Shakdts ol ity Year ended 31 March 2018 b S SRS
(a) Term loan from Landesbank Baden-Wurttenberg (LBBW) of ¥ 32,611.19 lakhs {31 Masch 2018: TNil) is Year ended Year ended
secured by exclusive charge on Main Press Line of MOF plant at Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh along with Segment Plywood  Medium Density Total 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
aniy other movable fixed assels of the Holding Company, financed by Landesbank Badan-Wurltenberg. and allied  Fibre Board and Consumption of stores and spares 945.50
\ide letter dated June 14, 2019, theloanis to be further securad by: products __allied products SRR 6.747.53 )
i}  Exchesive charge over main press line of MDF plant at Pantnagar {Uttarakhand) Sale of goods (including excise duty): Ren 7 T-1E
i) Corporaie guarantee from Greenply Industses Limited in favor of LEBW of EURD 12_5million; - External customars = Repairs 1o: ;
W) Debt Service Resarve Account in EUROIINR for one rapayment instalmant plus interast, pledged - Inter-segment = e
b LBEW Othes Qperating Reverise ] - buildings : 3379
(b) Other term loans of ¥ 21,108.10 kakhs (31 March 2018: % Nil) are secured by: : : ' ﬁz::”'j equipment ::3;:
! EFJ;Lrg:Eaﬁgﬁdcgigfnm.r:?ﬁrgﬁ;ﬁ ! MR SO A AT Inter-segment ellml!'uan:nn ) Insurance 213.68
() First pari passu charge on all movable fixed assals of the Holding Company exceplt the main press Lises Qtner Oparaling Raverue - Rates and taxes 49.21
line of MDF plant at Chittor | Andfira Pradesh) along with any other movabie fixed assets exclusively Total revenue from contracts with customers “ ; Traveling expenses 806.90
charged tﬂliaﬂdasbank Baden-Wurtlenbarg. _ a) The Group presentad disaggregated revenue basad on the type of goods sﬂ!d to customers and location of : Freight and delivery expenses 3,450.26
i) Second par passu charge on all current assets of the Holding Company. customers. The Group's revenue is recognised for goods transferred at a paint in time. The Group believes Expor expenses 801.07 .
{iv] Due to stipulabon from LBBW the security of Main press line of MDF plant at Pantnagar that the abovia disaggregation :_ha best dapicts how the nature, amaurt, timing and uncertainty of ravanues fis _
(Uttarakhand) wil be excluded subsequently.” and cash flows are effected by industry, market and other economic factors. Segmant wise nature, amount, Advertisement and sales promotion 1,10743
(c] Secured Loan against vehicles and equipments are in respect of finance of vehicles, secured by timing and uncerainty of revenues and cash flows are described below: Directors siting fees 2.36 -
hypathecation of the respective vehicles, Mature of goods orservices | The Group manufactures and sales, plywood and other phywood-refated Payment 1o auditors [refer note 34 (i) balow) 29.22 0.1
(d) Working capital loans of ¥ 1,688,681 lakhs (31 March 2018: F Nil) are secured by: albed products such as veneer, compreq, doors, efc, Medium Density Expenditure on corporate social responsibility [refer note 34 (i) bedow] 17.64
() Firstparipassu charge on all cusrent assets of the Holding Cormpary. Fibre Board and allied products such as fibre board, plank, etc L oss on saleldiscard of property, plant and equipment 8.78
(i) Second pari passu charge on immovable fived assets of the Holding Company at Pantnagar Whemn revenue is recognised | For Dumeslii_: Customer : H&\'E!'lue i5 typically recognised when the Amortisation of leasehold land prepayments 16.31
(Utiarakhand} and Chittoor {Andhra Pradesh). goods are delivered to the customer's warehouses, Provisian for doubthul debts 84.78 :
(i) Second pari passu charge on all movable fixed assets of the Holding Company excapt the main For Export Customer : Revenue is lypically recognised when the goods Miscellanaous expenses 1.938.95 508
press line of MOF plant at Chittor {Andhra Pradesh) along with any other movable fixed assets areFl:-l?lwered tothe Wﬂﬂt’?”t' 13:417 41 XL
axclusively charged bo Landesbank Badan-Wurthenbarg. Significant paymentterms | Paymentis received as per the agreed payment terms with customer, } _ u '
(] Due to stipulaton from LBBW the security of Main press line of MOF plant at Panbnagar Obligations forreturns and | Customers have the right to retern the goods ko the Group, if the customers 344 F'ayme.nt % andkon
(Uttarakhand) will be excluded subsequently. refunds, if any are dissatisfied with the quality of product which is determined on a case to As auditors:
(e) Foreign cumency foan - buyers credit of T 256,47 takhs (31 March 2018; T Nil) is secured by letter of case basis by the Group, - Statutory audit 23.32 0.1
credit/letter of undertaking issuad by banks. ' b) Forcontract balances 8. frade receivables refer Mote 11 - Tax aui -
Naote: Refer Note 48 for datails on scheme of arrangament c) The amount of revenue from contracts with customers recognised in the statement of profit and loss is the - Limited review of quarterly results
20. Other financial liabilities contracted price. In ather capacity
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 27.  Other income - Carification fees 080
Non-current Year ended Year ended - Other senices
Security deposits from customers 1,253.00 31 March 2019 31 March 2013 Reimbursement of expenses ; \
Current Interest on fixed deposits with banks and others 69.03 29 77 01
Cusrent maturities of long term bormowings (refar note 185) 7,663.70 Unspent lkabilities no longer required writien back 165.99 5. Income tax
Currant maturities of loan against vehicles and equipments (refer note 19) 479.45 s Foresgn exchange fluctuations 1,021.85 - See accounting policy in note 3{o)
Inferest acerued but not due on borrowings 106.27 - Miscellaneous income 12.63 - Year ended Year ended
Liability for capital goods 2,408.23 1,269.50 - 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Employee benefits payable 315.72 28. Cost of materials consumed (a) Amount recognised in Profit and Loss
10,973.37 - Year ended Year ended Current tax 499 41
; ; . ; 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 Earlier years fax -
EY Hae;r; |§un1.:'; amaunt due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 Inventory of raw matarials at the beginning of the year ) i it 499,44
(b} Inforrmation about the Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to the above financial liablities A il ac o UGN L ciiesihs L NTENGRTIENE {5eE N0l 45) S81.15 Dafe-:red.m: 4:413.99)
i discicsad in nobe 42 Add: Purchases 28,050.61 - Mal credit (499.41) -
2. Pravisions Less: Inventory of raw materials at the end of the year (3,695.02) Deferred tax (2,718.40) -
See accounting policy in note 3(i) and (j) 29,006.74 Tax expense in Statement of Profit and Loss (2,218.99)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 29. Purchase of stock in trade Defemed tax in other comprehensive income 1217
Non-current Year ended Year ended Tax expense in Total Comprehensive Income (2,206.82)
Provisions for employee benefits: M 31 March 2018 {b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate for the year
Net defined benefit Eabilty - gratuity 459.26 : PURCtisg o aed Joads LT - Profit before Tax 1,238.45 (5.18)
Liabllity for compensated absences 431.66 i N _ N 876.24 - Applicable Income Tax rate 34.944% 34 BOES,
790.82 : a. Ehanges in inventories of fllllISI'IEd goods, Computed tax expense 412.76 (1.80)
P gﬂm""f'ﬂ?mﬁ’“‘! 5?;’:: '3":”“*5 Additional deduction 2s per income tax (2,907.17) :
Provisions for employee benefits: e I Vearamdad Vegrandad Mon-deductible expenses for tax purposes N 620
Net defined benefit Rability - gratuity 235 63 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 Deferred tax assel not recognised on business osses of subsidiary 333.83 -
Liability for compensated absences 157.41 < Opening invantories Cther d'HE’E"l_"fEE . (4.61) 1.60
183.03 = Tax expense in Statement of Profit and Loss (2,218.99) -
5 Other non-current Habilities Work-in-progress - {c) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities:
31 March 2013 31 March 2018 Finished goods - Property. plant and equipment and intangible assats 14,733.94
Deferred income on Government grants 4,529.95 . Provisions for employee benefits {468.33)
Government grants have been receivad for the import of certain items of property, plant and egquipment under Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement |See Note 48) Provision for doubtful debls {121.76) X
export pru_mnt_i:nn capiE_aI goods I:EPCi_E] s.chn_amﬂ nf_Guvemment of India. The I-!::Edin_g E!:ln'_npany has Dertai_n Work-n-peogress 1 38158 i Other termporary differences (9.69) -
ex;:_-t:nrt obligations against such benefits availed which the Holding Company will fulfill within the required time ! Unabsorbed depreciation camed forward (12,429.43)
period under the scheme, For contingencies attached to these grants, refer note 37, Finished goods 2,246.33 - Mivimum Albestiat T (MAT) credt (499.41)
23, Trade payables 3,627.89 : Deferred tax liabilities 1,205.30
| | 31 March 399 41 March 2014 Closing inventories (d) Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liability:
Dues to micro and small enterprises Eﬂefer.nme 46) 0.81 - R 2 423,43 ; Temporary difference on account of:
Dues ta ofher than icro and small enlerprises 7 8.158.06 0.5 Finished goods 5,418.79 ) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels 10,293.38 -
- s S ¥ T - Provisions for employee benefits (42.20)
::{Sﬂrrtv;ajgn aboul the Group's exposure 1o currency and liquadity risks related 1o trade payables is disclosad . . | ,641. Brovisiar for-daublit dehits (3142)
. ect of foreign exchange fluciuations 4.B5 - Other tamporary differences (9.62)
24. Derivatives (4,210.18) Unabsorbed depraciation carried forward [12,429.43)

See accounting policy in note 3(c)iv)
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Minimurn Alternate Tax (MAT) cradit entitlarnent (499.41) -
Deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Loss (2,718.40) -
Termparary differance of liabilites in other comprebensive income 1217 -
Deferred tax in Total Comprehensive Income 2, 706.23) "
MAT credit ublsation in income tax for earlier years .
Total Deferred tax (2,706.23)
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share
{1y Profit for the year, attributable to the equity shareholders 345744 {5.19)
{ii) Weighied average number of equity share
- Mumiber of eguity shares at the beginning of the year 1,000,000
= Mumber of equity shares allotted on 10 January 2018 1,000,000
- Number of shares in Shara capital suspense 122 627,395 -
- Cancelled pursuant to scheme of arangament (See Note 48) 1,000,000 -
- Mumber of equity shares at the end of the year 122,627,385 1,000,000
Weighted average number of equity shares 122,627,385 1 .IIIIIII}.IZIIIIEIM_
Basic and diluted eamings per share (=) [(i)ii)] 2.82 10.52)
Contingent liabilities and commitments
(for the extent nol provided for)
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims againstthe Group not acknowledged as debts:
(1) Excseduty, sales tax and ofher indirect taxes in dispute 1,029.07 -

b} The Hon'bée Supreme Court of India (507 by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya
Roshani Limited & others vis EPFO, set out the principées based on which allowances paid fo the employees
should be idenfified for inclusion In basic wages for the purposes of computation of Prowident Fund
contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision has been filed and is panding before the SC
for disposal. In view of the management, the liabdity for the period from date of the SC order to 31 March 2015
is not significant. Further, the pending decision on the subject review pedition and directions from the EPFO,
the impact for the past perod, i any, 1s not ascerainable and conssgquently no effect has been given in the
Bocounts,

¢} The audited GST return for the year ended 31 March 2018 is pending for the filing as competent authority has
extended the date of filng until 31 August 2018, The Holding company is in process of reconciling the data of
GSTR 24 with GETR 3B. In view of the management on final reconciliation, the impact will not be
matarial,

Capital and other commitments

(1) Estimated amount of expor abligations o be fulfilled in respect of goods imparted
under Export Promation Capital Goods scheme (EPCG) 43,943.10 s

Claim against the Group not acknowledged as debt;

Cash outflows for the above are determinable only on receipt of judgments pending at vanous forums/ authorities.
The Group has reviewed all its pending ibgations and proceedings and has adequately provided for whare
provisions are requined and disclased as conbngent liabilities where applicabla, in its financial stalemanis. The
Group does not axpect the outcoma of these proceedings o have a materially adwarse effect on its financial
poziion.

Operating leases

Sea accounting policy in note 3(m)

The Grougp has taken certain cormmercial premises under cancellable operating leases, These lease agreements
ara normally renewed on expiry, Lease payments recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss with
respect o operating leases T 715,16 lakhs (37 March 2018: T Nil) has been included as rent in noda 34 'Othar
Felated party disclosure
a) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Holding company:

i} Greenply Industries Limited {upto 31.03.2018, pursuant fo scheme of arrangement)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
i} M. Shiv Prakash Mittal, Director®
i) Mr. Shobhan Mittal, Director®
ii] M. Mahesh Kumar Jiwarajka, Mon-Executive Independent Director
iv) M Salil Kumar Bhandari, Mon-Executive Independent Director
¥} Ms. Susmita Singha, Non-Exacutive Independant Diractor
* See Note 43.4 {f) , for details on KMP
Relatives of Key Management Personnel (KMP)
i) Mrs. Chibwan Mittal {¥¥ife of Mr. Shobhan Mitial)
b) Enterprises controlled by Key Management Personnel or their relatives
i1 Greenlam indusiries Limited
il Greenply Industries Limided
¢) Related party transactions
MName of the related party

Nature of transaction 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Greenlam Industries Limited Sale of products 546.14
Purchase of products 137.36
Graenply Industries Limited Sale of products 4,416.03 -
Equity share capital recaived . 10.00
Mr. Shiv Prakash Mitial Remuneration 245.14
Mr. Shobhan Mittal Remuneration 260.68 =
hr. Mahesh Kurmar Jiwarajka Sitting Fees 1.00 -
Mr. Salil Kumar Bhandari Sitling Fees 0.50
s, Susmita Singha Sitting Fees 0.50 -
Mrs. Chitwan Mittal Remuneration 28.23 -
d) Outstanding balances
Name of the related parly Mature of transaction 31 March 2019 31 March 218
Graenlam Indusiries Limiled Sale of products 66.04 -
Purchasa of products 3.64 -
Greenply Imdustries Limited Bale of products 1,145.23
)] Key Management Personnel compensation
Kay management parsannals compansation comprisad of the following:
MNature of transaction
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Shor-term employea benafits 47142 -
Other long-term banefits 34.40 -
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 505.82

As the future liability for gratuity and compensated encashmant is provided on an acluarial basss for the Halding
Company ag a whole, the amount paraining 1o each key management personnel is not separately ascertainabla
and, therefore, not included above. Based on the recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration
Committes, all decisions ralating fo the remunaration of the KMPs are taken by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company, in accordance with shareholders’ approval, wherever necessany.

f| Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Purchase from refated parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on tarms equivalent o those that
prevail inarm's kzngth ransactions with other vendors, Qutstanding bakances at ihe year-end are unsecured and
will be settled in cash and cash equivalents, The Group has not recorded any impairment of recesvables relating to
amounts owad by related parties. This assassment is undertakan in each financial year through axamining the
financial position of the related parties and the marketin which the related party operates.

h) Details of loans, investments and guarantaes coverad under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act,
2013

il Details of loans
(il Details of investments

Particulars of investmeanis as required under Seclion 186{4} of the Companias Act, 2013 have bean disclozed
in note T,

(iii} Details of guarantees Mol Applicable
Accounting classifications and fair values (Ind AS 107)
See accounting palicy in note 3c)

The fair values of financial assets and labilities, fogether with the carrying amounts shown in the Standalone
Balance Sheet are as follows:

Not Applicable

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Financial assets at amortised cost
Mon-currant
Loans 1,233.60 -
Current
Trade receivables 4,561 86 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,956.59 3.07
Other bank balances 28.54 -
Loans 32,32 -
Dithar financial assats 2.918.69 -
10,731.69 5.07
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Current
Lewel 2
Derivatives 10.39
10.38 -
Total Financial Assets 10,742.08 507
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non-current
Borrowings 45.966.53 =
Other financial liabilities 1,253.00 -
Current
Bormowings 4,541.70 -
Diiar financial liabilities 10,973.37
Trade payables 8,156,808 0.25
70,801.40 0.25
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Fair value measurament

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilties are includad at the amaount at which the Estrurment could be
exchangedin a currentfransaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liguidation sale.

The Group has established the following fair value hierarchy that categories the value indo 3 levels. The inputs o
valuation technigues usad to measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1: The hierarchy uses quoted prces in aclive markeds for identical assefs or liabdéties, The fair vales of all
bonds which are traded in the stock exchanges i valued using the closing price or dealer quatations as at the
reporting date.

Lawel 2: Tha fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example fraded bonds,
over the counter denvatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of obsersable
markel data and rety as little as possible on Growp specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value
aninstrument are obzervable, the instrument ks inchedad in Leval 2,

Level 3: if one or mora of the significant inputs is not based on observable marked data, the instrument is included
in Level 3. Financial aszets and liabilities measured at fair value - recumring fair value measuremenis are as
Tollows.

SMarch2019 31 March 2012
Financial assets - Level 2
Derivativas 1&9

The management assessad that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, other bank balances, trade
payable, cash credits, borrowings and other financial assets and Babilites approximate their camying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments,

The following methods and assumpdions were used to estimate the fair values: (a) The fair value of the quoted
invesimenis are based on market price at the respective reporting date. (k) The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on obzervable yield curves based on
report obtzined from banking partners. (c) The tair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated as
the present value determined using forward exchange rates and interest rale curve of the respective currencies
based on report obtained from banking partnars.

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instrumsants:

()  Credit risk

(i) Ligquidity risk

{ill) Market risk

Risk management framework

The Group's principal financial liabities, other than derivatives, comprises of borrowings, trade and ofher
payables. Tha main purpose of thase financial [abilites is to finance the Group operations. The Group's principal
financial assets. other than desvalives include trade and other receivables, investmenis and cash and cash
equivalents thal derive directly from ils operations

The Group's activilies expose it to a vanety of financial risks, including market risk, credit nisk and liquidity risk,
The Group’s primary risk managemeant focus is 1o minimise potential adverse effects of markel risk on its financial
performance. The Group uses dervalive financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk
exposures, Foreign currency options confract ane entered o hedge certain foresgn curmency risk exposures and
inlerest rate swaps 1o hedge vaniable inlerest rate exposures, The Group's exposure to credil isk is influenced
mainty by the individual characterstc of each custormer and the concentration of rizk from the fop few customers.
The Group's risk management assessment and poicies and processes are established to idendify and analyse
the risks faced by the Group, io 58t approprigte nsk Emits and conirols, and fo monitor such risks and compliance
with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed ragularly 1o reflact
changes inmarket conditions and the Group’s activites.

Thiz note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuning and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital, The sources of
resks which the Group is exposad to and their management is givan below:

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Management
Credit nsk Trade receivables, Ageing analysis, Diversification of mutual
Investmants, Dervatia Cradit rating fund investments, Credit
financial instrumenis, Loans lirnit and credit worthiness
manikoring, credit kased
approval process
Licpuidity risk Borrowings and Ciher Rolling cash flow Adequate unused credil
liabilities forecasis lings and borrowing
facilities.
Market risk
Foreign exchange risk | Commitied commercial ash flow forecasting | Forward foreign exchange
fransacton, Financial asset Sensitivity analysis | contracts.
and liabilites not denominated
in INR
Interest rate Long term borrowings Senziivity
at variable rates analysis Interest rate | Interest rate swaps
movarnants
(i} Creditrisk

Credit isk is the risk of financial koss of the Group i a customer or counterparty Lo a financial mstrument fails to
maeatils contraciual abligations, and arises principally from the Group receivables frorm customers and loans. The
Group i exposed to credit rigk from Hs operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its
financinglinvesting activibes, including deposits with bank, foreign exchange transactions and financial
guaranteas, The Group has no significant cancanltration of cradit risk with any countarparty. The carring amount
of financial assets represant the maximum cradit fisk axposure.

Trade receivable

The managarment has established a cradil policy under which each new customer is analysed mdividually for
creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and defivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Group's review includes extemal ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information,
industry inforrmation and in some cases bank referances.

Exposure to credit risks

The Group's exposure to credit risk & infleenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of each customer,
Howaver management also considers the factars that may influance the cradit sk of its custormer bass, including
the default risk associated with the industry. Details of concentration percentage of revenue generated from fop
customer and tog five customers are stabed bedow:

Particulars 41 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from a top customer 6.36% .
Revenue from fop five customars 12.26% -

Trade receivables are primarily unsecurad and are derived from revenue earned Trom customers. Credit risk
iz managed through credif approvals, establizhing credit limits and by confinuously monitoring the
craditworthness of customers to which the Group grants credil terms in the normal course of business, As
paf simplified approach, the Group makes provision of expected cradit kass on frade receivables using a
provision matrix io mitigate the risk of default payments amd makes approprate provisions at each reporting
date whenever is for longer period and invalves higher risk. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group
uses expected cradit loss model 1o assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group wses a provision malrix 1o
compute the credit lozs allowance for trade receivables. The said provision has been netted off under trade
receivables

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning . -
Add: Arnount adjustad pursuant to Schame

of Arrangement (Saa Nota 48) 229.48 -
Impairment koss recognised 96.90 2
Balance at the end 326.38 -

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to setile or meet its obligations on fime or at
regsonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
sacurities and the availability of funding through an adequate armount of credit facilites to meet obligations when
due. The Group's finance team is responsible for liquidity, finding as well as setiement management. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Managemeant monitors the
Group's byuidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expecled cash flows. The Group's approach 1o
managing bguidity ig bo ansura, as far as possibla, that itwill hava sufficiant liquidity to meat its liabilities whan thiay
are due, under both nommal and stressed conditions, without incuming unaccepiable losses or risking damage o
the Group's repulation

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilibes at the
reporting dale based on contraciual undiscounled payments.

31 March 2019 <{year 1-Syears >5years Total
Borrowings {including curment maturities)” 14,258.90 3106764  13,056.64 63,383.27
Trade payables 8,156.89 = 8,156.59
Cither financial liabilities 2,723.95 1,253.00 3,976.95
Derivatives - - - -

25,139.83 32320064  13.056.64 75517.11
31 March 20138 <{year 1-5years = byears Total
Borrowings (including current maturities) - - - -
Trade payables : ; : i
Other financial liabilities - - - -
Derivatives

*including estimated intanest
(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fulure earnings, fair value or future cash fiows that may result from a change in the
price of a financial instrument . The vatue of a financial instrument may change az a result of changes in the
interest rates, foreign curmency exchange rates, commodsly prices, equity prices and other market changes that
effect market risk sensiliva instruments, Marksl risk is atlribotable o all market risk sensitive financial insiruments
including investments and deposits, forelgn cusrency receivables, payables and borrowings. The Group uses
derivatives 10 manage marked risks. All such tramsactions are camied out within the guidelines set by the
management

{a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the nisk impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposurs in foreign currency,
which fluctuate dee 1o changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure 1o the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primariy to the foreign currency borrowings, import of raw materials and spare paris,
capital expenditure, exports of finished goods. The Group evaluates exchange rate exposure ansing from foreign
currency Iransactions. The Group foSows established sk managemenl policies and standard operating
proceduras. [tuses derivative instruments like foreign currancy swaps and forwards to hedge exposura to foreign
cumency rizk.

Expozure to currency riskThe Growp's exposure to foreign currency at the end of the reporing period are as
follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Particulars Currency Amount in Amount in
Foreign Foreign
currency ¥ in Lakhs currency & in Lakhs
= Hedged exposures
Trade payables EURD 218,797 169.60 - -
ush 177,416 122.61 - -
292.21 -

. 43,

= Unhedged exposures
Bormowings EURO 42071469 32.611.19 - -
UsD 11,000,000 7.602.10 - -
Bormowings - Packing credit N 421,852 291.43
Bormowings - Buyers credit 3D 02 256.47 -
Trade payables EURO 1,196 493 82745 -
UsD 549 536 ira.78 - =
1,307.23 -
Trade receivables UsD 1865127 1,150.77 . =

Sensitivity analysis

Areazsonaibly possitle strengthening (weakening) of the S0 and EURD against Indian rupee at 31 March woukd
have affected the measurement of financial insirements denominated in a forsign currency and affected equity
and profit or loss by the amaunt shown below, This analysis assumes that all ather variables, in particular inlerast
rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars Mature Effect 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
U500 (1% Movemant) Profit or loss Strengthening (75.02) -
Weakening 75.02 -
Equity, net of tax Strangthening (49.06) -
Weakening 49.06 -
EUR [1% Movemant) Profil or loss Strangthening (337.08) -
Weakening 337.08 -
Equity, net of tax Strengthening (220.42) -
Waakening 220.42 -
(b} Interest rate risk

Inferest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of 8 inancial nstrument will luctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group exposure 1o the rsk of changes in market interest rates related
primariiy to the Group's short berm borrowing with floating interest rates. For all long term bormowings with fioating
rates, the risk of varigtion in the mterest rates in mitigated through mterest rate swaps. The Group constanily
manitors the credit markels and rebalances ils financing strategies 1o achieve an optimal maturity profile and
financing cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The intarest rate profile of the Group s interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

Particulars H March 2019 31 March 2018

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assels - -

Financial liabdities - -

Effect of interest rate swaps {7,602.10) .
(7,602.10) -

Variable rate instruments
Fimancial asssls - -

Financial liabsties 160,031.98) =
{60,031.98)

Efiect of interest rate swaps T,602.10 -
(52,429,858} -

Sensitivity analysis

Fixed rate instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subsect 10 interest rate risk for the purpose of
sensitive analysis.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in variable rata instruments at the reporting dates would
have increased or decreased profit or loss by the amounts shown below:

Particulars Mature Effect 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Variable rate instruments  Profil or loss Sirengthaning (600.32) .
Weakening G032 -
Equity, net of tax Strangthening (392.56)
Weakaning 392.56
Imterest rate swap Profit or loss Strengthaning T6.02 -
Weakening (T6.02) -
Equity, net of tax Strangthening 49.71 -
Weakening (49.71) -
Cash flow sensitivity (net])  Profil or loss Strengthening (524.30) -
Weakening 524.30 -
Equity, neteftax  Strengthening [342.85) :
Weakening 342.85 2
Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain & strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the buginess. The management monitors the relum on capital, as well as the
level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Group's objective when managing capial are o: (a) to maximize
shareholders value and provide bensfits to other stakeholders and (b) maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital, For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capdtal includes issued equity
share capital and other equity reserves atiributable to the equity holders. The Group monitors capital using debt-
equity ratic, which is total debt less liquid investments divided by tofal equity.

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Todal dabt (Bank and other bormowings) 5B 651.38 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,956.59 a.07
Adjusted net debt 56,694.79 (507
Equity 64,549,580 4 B1
Debt to Equity (net) 0.88 (1.08)

Im addstion, the Growp has financial cowenants relating to the banking facilites that it has taken from all the lenders
like interest service coverage ratio, Debt o EBITDA, current ratio ete, which is maintained by the Group

Dperating segments
A, Basis of segment

An operafing segment i a component of the Group thal engages in business activibes from which it may eam
revenues and incur expensas, including revenues and expenses that relate to fransactions with any of the Group'
5 other companents, and for which discrate financial information is available. All operating segrments’ operating
resulis are reviewed regularly by the Growp’s Chief operating decizion maker {CODM) ko make decizions about
resources to be allocated fo the ssgments and assess their performance. The Group has two reportable
segments, &5 described below, whach is the Group's stralegic business units, These business unils are managed
saparately bacause they require different technology and marketing strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

Reportable segment DOperations
Plywood and allied products Manufacturing
Medium Density Fibre Boards and aflied products Manufaciuring

B. Information about reportable segments

Information regarding the results of each reportable segrment is includad balow. Parformance is measured basaed
on segment profit (before tax), as included in the internal managemeni reports that are reviewed by the Group's
CEQ. Segment profitis ussd fo measurs performance as management believes that such information is the most
rebevant in evalualing the resulls of certain sagmeants relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

[ Year ended 31 March 2018 “m"ﬁ;r:;ﬂahla sagmants
Plywood | Medium Total All Total
and Density |Reportable| other
allied Fibra segments | segments
producis Boards
and allied
products
Segment revenue.
- External revanuwes
a} Sales 1411615 | 44.146.32 | 5B262.4T 58,262.47
b} Other aperating income 3412 1,614 80 1,648.92 1,6458.92
- Infer-segment revenus = - = . -
Total segment revenue 1415027 | 45,761.12 | 59.911.38 39,911.39
Segment profitifloss) before income fax|  2,041.32 4.937.09 697841 6,978.41
Segment prafitlloss) bafore
income tax includes:
Intaras! revenus - - ! . ;
Interest expense - - - . -
Depreciation and amodization 44698 | 438394 483092 483092
Tax expanse - - - . -
Other matenial non cash item (if any) - - - - -
Segment assets 12,124.30 | 124,539.67 | 136,663.97 136,663.97
[ Segment liabilities 308269 | T345006| 7743275 - | 7743275 |
B. Information about reportable segments (continued)
Yearended 31 March 2013 Reportable segments
Plywood | Medium Total All Total
and Density |Reporiable| ofher
allied Fibre saegments | segments
products Boards
and allied
products
Segment revenue:
- External revenues
a) Sales - : £ : =
b) Other operating income = 2 e
- Inter-segment revenue -
Total segment revenus - . -
Segment profit{loss) before income fax - - -
Segment prafit(loss) before income
iax includes:
Interast revenue - - -
Interas! expense - - - - -
Depraciation and amortisation - - - - -
Tax expense - - - - -
iher material non cash item (if any) . . -
Segment assels - . - . -
Segment assets include:
Capital expendilure during the year - . - . .
Segment liabilities - . k . .

Prapery, plant and equipment are allocated based onlocation of the assels,
contmed on next page...
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cocomtied from previous age

= specified under MSMED Act, 2006 {i} Borrowings Nz
i Mpvahiise {d} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the {u) Trade payables B,714.78
Tolal revenue for reportable segments 58.911.39 end of each accounting year (i) Cther financiad liabiities 798515
Revenue for other segnents (e} The amaount of furthar interest remaining due and payable even : . ehdal E: =
Elimination of inter-segment revenus in the succeading years, until such date when the interest dues 0] Other currert liabiities 3603.63
Elirninat r id oy ) as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose ¢} Provisions 196,65
Imination of revenue of discantinued operation 3 3 of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 e
Consolidated revenue 50,011.39 of the MSMED Act, 2006, :“t“: l“”:“”t L :3::::
= = = otal liabilities 6,008,
ii. Profit before tax 47. Govemment grant {Ind AS 20} Other operating revenue includes incentives against scheme of budgetary 483 E PR P =
Tatal profit before tax for reportable segments 6,978.41 suppaort under Goods and Senvices Tax Regime for the unit set-up in Rudrapur-MOF, Uttarakhand of # 876.55 L T A 0N P L IO IO RCYMMNG:
; 7 Nil} Pursuant to the scheme, the difference between the book value of the assels and Eabilities transferred from
Profit befare tax for other segments lakins (31 March 2018 = i) ! ; e s . Ty )
E iaon of bk s ent peols 48. Schemeof Arrangement G.e:nrp:y h;las been craditad to the shareholders' fund of the Holding Company as under: —
t ita 8 : ' justriae Limi articulars oun
Elimination of profit of discontinued opertion 48.1 E‘ursuan. o the Composite Schame of :}rrangament ('the schema') netwa_en Graanply Industrias L|n1!led
(Greanply), the Holding Company and their respactive shareholdars and creditors as approved by the Hon'bie Share Capital 129627
Unallocated amounts Mational Law Company Tribunal (MCLT}, Guwahati Bench, vide its order dated June 28, 2013, which bacame in o —
Corporate expenses {5,739.96) effective on July 1, 2019 on filing with the Registrar of Companias, all the assats and liabitias of the 'transfiarmad Capital Raserve rilicbehol
- : buziness' of Greenply i.a. the MOF manufacturing unit situated at Routhu Suramala, Chitioor {Andira Pradash), Tatal 61,034.83
Consolidated profit before tax 1,5545 MDF manufacturing unit and Plywood and allied products manufacturing undt located in a common plot at 45.4 Othar Matiars:
iii. Assets Pantnagar {Uttarakhand), registered, marketing, branch and administrative officels) locatad in India and its : '
Total assets for reportable segments 136,663.97 investment in wholly owned subsidiary viz. Greenpanel Singapore Phe. Lid. formally known as Greenply Trading a) The Holding Company shall issue and allot 12,26 27 225 equity shares of Re. 1 {indian Rupees one only] 1o the
o ) Pte. Limited (registered in Singapore ) excluding fs investment of S0 37 50,000 (37 50,000 ordinary shares of shareholders of Greanply whose names appear in tha ragister of members of Greanply as on the record date, 1
Assets for other segments ) USD 1 each] in Greenply Alkemal [Singapore) Pre. Lid. (registered in Singapore)., have been transferrad to and {one) equity share of Re. 1 (Indian Rupeas ane only) each, creditad as fully paid up for every 1 (one| equity share
Unallocated amounts 9.131.36 vested in the Holding Company at their respective book values on a going concern basis with effect from the of Re. 1 (Indian Rup=es one only} each held by them in Greenply. Till the allotment, the same would appear in
Consolidated total assals 145,795.33 appointed date (i.e. April 1, 2018). Accordingly, the Scheme of Arrangement has been given effect to in these share suspense account. Since the effect of demerger has been given in the financials, 10,00,000 equity shares
R BLCOUNE of Re. 1 each alloted to Greenply has bean cancelled and the Holding Company has ceased to be subsidiary of
e Lhhiitres 48.2 Assels and liabilities transferred pursuant to the scheme: Greenply.
Total liabilities for reportable segments TTA3LTS The whote of the assets and liabilties of the Demerged undertaking of Greanply became the assels and liabilities b} Thetransactions between the appointed date upto to the effective date as appearing in the books of accounts of
Liabibties for other segments of the Holding Company and were recorded at their book values as appearing in the books of the Demerged Greenply have been deemed to have been made by the Holding Company
ith effect from 1 inted date {i. [1, 2018), The detais of assels and liabd anslerrs :
Unallocated amourts 381278 E_g‘:p&:irﬁ:gll}l:r;;s u.rf::ir:;rhe appointed date (Le. April 1, 2018), The details of assets and liabities translemsd ¢) Al costs, charges and expenses including stamp dulies ansing out of or incurred so far in camying out and
Consolidated total liabilities 81,245.53 e ' g : implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, have been bome by Greenply and the Holding
articulars moun ' tinof1:1.
C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures (continued) LOmpany i Fae T
v. Other material iterms Assels dj The mmovable assets of the Holding Company stands freed from all charges, mortgages and encumbrances
; ; redating to liabilities relating to Greenply. But, Greenply had created charges over its immovable assats (including
Particulars Year ended 31 March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018 (1) Non-curent assets 4 : o
: : ; those which now belong to the Holding Company) under the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of cartain credil
| Reportable Ad;ust-i Consoli- | Reportable | Adjust- | Consoli- (a) Property, plant and equipment STB2r07 facilities taken from vanous banks for itself and for various undertakings of the Holding Comgany. As the legal
segment | ments| dated| segment| ments| dated (b} Capital work-n-progress 734 348,65 ownarship of theimmovable assets have noft yet been transferrad to the Holding Company, Greenply continues to
total | totals | total N Olbe b it o 743 enjoy credit facilities by the subsisting charges, morigages and encumbrances over such assets, Vice Versa, the
Interest ravenue . . £ 9 Holding Company enjoys credit facilities by Ihe subsisting chames, mortgages and encumbrances over
Interest expense -1 2.46324) 2.463.24 (d) Fmancial assets immovable azsets belonging fo Greenply. Till creation/modificaton/satisfaction of Charges, as the case may be,
i | (i Investments 10,00 in favowr of the vanious banks/secured craditors of the respective Companies in terms of the applicable provizions
El:prﬁ:j:tlun and amortisation 433092 472.42! 530334 ] of the Companies Act, 2013, the banks/secured craditors of the Holding Company shall continue to hold thair
pe i efhial i iviniod (i) Loans 118407 respective charge over the immovable assets of Greenply
D, Geographical information 8] Dther non-curment assels 231328 g) Although, pursuant o the scheme of arrangement, the immovable properties belanging to the demerged
Particulars Within India Outside India Total Total non-current assets 114,617.10 undertakings of Greenply vest in andfor deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Holding Company, the
; 5 C ¢ s mutation of flle/azsignment of leases thereof in the name of the Holding Company are vet fo be made and
31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | (2) Current asse recorded by the appropriate authorities. Notwithstanding the same, the Holding Company exercises all rights and
2013 2018 013 2013 2018 3'3_1.54 fal Inventories 10,298 48 privileges and pays ground rent, municipal taxes and fulfils all obligations, in refation to or applicable fo swch
External revenue by location i i immavable properties
(b} Financial assets Y :
o A e i b il Trade receivables & 064.97 fi  Mr Shiv Prakash Mital and Mr. Shobhan Mittal, Directors of the company would be appointed a5 Executive
Carrying amount of segment i g ' Chairman and Managing Director & CEO respectively in the board meeting to be held on 12 July 2019, As such
assets by location of assets | 142,620.79 3174.54 - |145785.43 5 (i) Cash and cash equivalents 216.10 they have been included as Key Managarial Parsonnel (KMP), since they have a significant influence over the
E. Major customer (iii) Other bank balances 1365 operating and financial decisions making roles. Hence, the remuneration paid to them during FY 2018-18 has
. : Gt R
The Group does not raceive 10% or more of its revenwes from transacfions with any singhe extamal (iv} Loans £1.44 IR (R0 e RGNty AR
customer. l:'-f] bl 198 g7 49, Distribution made and proposed dividend (Ind AS 1)
& | K - 1t
" ; _ roposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval al the annual general meeting and are not
45. Taxation — it —— = d divid ity sh ; pproval at th q ing and
The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required WA OS) auee et recognsed as a liability (including dividend distribution tax thereon) as at 31 March 2019, Since no dividend has
by the transfer pricing regulafions under Seclions 92-02F of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, Since the law reguires (c) Other current assets 4,503 44 been proposed in the current and previcus year, financial figures with respect to the same has nof been
udsie 5 documents o the nematonal b it o i he essacfod ekeoes gy, | 10tICumentaseets 242591 gt
e R ol TR S e pRE il g 50. The consolidated financial statements of the previous year was not required to be prepared since there was no
financial year. The management is of the opinion that its infernational transactions are at arm's length so that the Total assets 137,043.01 entity for the purpose of consolidation
aforesaid legislabon will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularty on the amount of fax Liabilities o sttt y
expense for the year and that of provision for taxation, S 51. The figures stated in the current year are not comparable with those of previous period for the reasons that [a) the
46. DuestoMicro enterprisesand small enterprises {1} MNon-current liabilities Egures fior the pr.gufz:.uapenm Were Since in:‘.:urpuraﬁun of ':he Hodding I:-::mp::ny on Decamber 13, 2017 1o March
91 March 2019 91 Maseh 2018 {a) Financial iabities a ._13‘{]1:3';: and (o} in .hET c_urren|1 %.:Eﬁr;_eﬁeaf:ffhbeen given tn_f;heme o ﬁ.rr_?lg?ment a5 aplzllplrc-'fed by 1h;.
- . - : - , _ . Mational Comgany Law Tnibunal. The figures & previous period are re-classified’ re-arranged | re -grouped,
VAL N0 M T GRS S s (i} Borrowings 41.647.87 wharever nacessary so as to ba in conformity with the figuras of the current period’s classification/disclosure,
as at the end of each accounting year (i) Other financial Eabilities 1,057.53
- Principal 0.81 - i
" terezt b} Provisicns Tee.Ty For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Greenpanel Industries Limited
. Joi 5 I 3 .I =. . II [ 1 Y} ..
(b] The amount of interast paid by the buyar in tarms of Section 16 I'Ef' Dholarmad s o I_Eb_'!-l_ﬂ'l 18 .E.dl
of the Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Devalopment Act, (d) Other non-current liabilities 4,901.70 Shiv Prakash Mittal
2006 (MSMED .-!v:x 2008) along with 11.1#: amaount u:-f.1he payment Tatal non-currant labilitias 52,395.40 Execufive Chalrman
made to the supplier bayond the appointed day during each Place: Kolkata

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

{c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointsd day during the yearbut without adding the interest

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

acocounting year.
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